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Kankai Bikas Bank Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As on 31 Asar 2076

Particulars

Note

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

4.1

762,089,709

691,370,333

661,004,898

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

4.2

33,385,352

80,900,166

27,119,597

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

4.3

-

-

-

Derivative Financial Instruments

4.4

-

-

-

Other Trading Assets

4.5

-

-

-

Loans and Advances to BFIs

4.6

15,360,908

28,846,568

46,062,067

Loans and Advances to Customers

4.7

1,875,158,803

1,623,640,268

1,126,312,533

Investment Securities

4.8

29,955,044

28,948,403

472,538

Current Tax Assets

4.9

2,223,088

1,832,474

834,630

Investment in Subsidiaries

4.10

-

-

-

Investment in Associates

4.11

-

-

-

Investment Property

4.12

-

-

-

Property and Equipment

4.13

35,150,008

31,707,944

25,855,318

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

4.14

1,937,607

2,293,464

1,470,221

Deferred Tax Assets

4.15

1,829,173

1,654,067

1,454,635

Other Assets

4.16

14,480,419

7,839,840

4,384,486

2,771,570,111

2,499,033,528

1,894,970,922

Total Assets
Particulars

Note

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

4.17

-

-

-

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

4.18

-

-

-

Derivative Financial Instruments

4.19

-

-

-

Deposits from Customers

4.20

2,121,196,049

1,889,553,795

1,569,521,324

Borrowings

4.21

-

-

-

Current Tax Liabilities

4.9

-

-

-

Provisions

4.22

-

-

-

Deferred Tax Liabilities

4.15

-

-

-

Other Liabilities

4.23

34,487,119

19,304,976

17,019,323

Debt Securities Issued

4.24

-

-

-

Subordinated Liabilities

4.25

Total Liabilities

-

-

-

2,155,683,168

1,908,858,771

1,586,540,647

515,000,000

500,000,000

246,356,300

Equity
Share Capital

4.26

Share Premium
Retained Earnings
Reserves

4.27

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders

Total Liabilities and Equity
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

644,823

25,990

51,864,867

32,897,109

58,030,228

37,665,067

29,150,875

615,886,943

590,174,757

308,430,274

Non Controlling Interest
Total Equity

644,823
42,211,892

-

-

-

615,886,943

590,174,757

308,430,274

2,771,570,111

2,499,033,528

1,894,970,922

56,637,000

48,230,000

6,863,000

119.59

118.03

125.20

4.28

Net Assets Value per share

As per our report of even date
Bikash Singh Chauhan
Head- Finance
Biswa Raj Adhikari
Director
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Prakash Man Bajracharya
Chief Executive Officer
Manoj Kumar Parsai
Director

Sewak Dahal
Chairman
Prem Pd. Subedi
Director

Basanta Poudel
Director
Anita Khatri
Director

Kinjal Pokharel
Principal
Kinjal and Associates
Chartered Accountant
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Kankai Bikas Bank Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended 31 Asar 2076

Particulars

Note

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Interest Income

4.29

301,445,309

238,879,057

Interest Expense

4.30

145,431,100

109,856,129

156,014,209

129,022,928

20,456,277

20,075,338

Net Interest Income
Fee and Commission Income

4.31

Fee and Commission Expense

4.32

1,137,916

916,501

19,318,361

19,158,838

175,332,570

148,181,766

-

-

Net Fee and Commission Income
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income
Net Trading Income

4.33

Other Operating Income

4.34

Total Operating Income
Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loans and Other Lossess

406,333

455,645

175,738,903

148,637,412

4.35

Net Operating Income

1,083,032

6,093,012

174,655,871

142,544,399

Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses

4.36

54,150,053

46,569,149

Other Operating Expenses

4.37

30,089,106

24,608,917

Depreciation & Amortisation

4.38

8,748,622

7,801,022

81,668,090

63,565,311

-

-

Operating Profit
Non Operating Income

4.39

Non Operating Expense

4.40

Profit Before Income Tax
Income Tax Expense

-

-

81,668,090

63,565,311

25,131,890

18,720,321

4.41

Current Tax
Deferred Tax

(625,370)

288,592

57,161,570

44,556,398

57,161,570

44,556,398

-

-

Basic Earnings per Share

11.10

8.91

Diluted Earnings per Share

11.10

8.91

Profit for the Period
Profit Attributable to:
Equity-holders of the Bank
Non-Controlling Interest
Earnings per Share

As per our report of even date

Bikash Singh Chauhan
Head- Finance
Biswa Raj Adhikari
Director
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Prakash Man Bajracharya
Chief Executive Officer
Manoj Kumar Parsai
Director

Sewak Dahal
Chairman
Prem Pd. Subedi
Director

Basanta Poudel
Director
Anita Khatri
Director

Kinjal Pokharel
Principal
Kinjal and Associates
Chartered Accountant
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Kankai Bikas Bank Limited

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended Asar 2076

Particulars

Asar end 2076

Profit for the year

Asar end 2075

57,161,570

44,556,398

1,006,641

(2,469,385)

Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revaluation
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

-

-

494,241

842,635

Income tax relating to above items

(450,265)

488,025

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

1,050,617

(1,138,725)

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

-

-

Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)

-

-

Income tax relating to above items

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to

profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equity method
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net of Income Tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period

-

-

1,050,617

(1,138,725)

58,212,187

43,417,673

58,212,187

43,417,673

-

-

58,212,187

43,417,673

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Equity-Holders of the Bank
Non-Controlling Interest
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period

As per our report of even date

Bikash Singh Chauhan
Head- Finance
Biswa Raj Adhikari
Director
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Prakash Man Bajracharya
Chief Executive Officer
Manoj Kumar Parsai
Director

Sewak Dahal
Chairman
Prem Pd. Subedi
Director

Basanta Poudel
Director
Anita Khatri
Director

Kinjal Pokharel
Principal
Kinjal and Associates
Chartered Accountant
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Kankai Bikas Bank Limited
Statement of Cash Flow

For the Year Ended 31 Asar 2076
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received
Fee and Other Income Received
Dividend Received
Receipts from Other Operating Activities
Interest Paid

296,526,138

232,206,155

20,456,277

20,075,338

-

-

356,940

344,325

(145,431,100)

(109,856,129)

Commissions and Fees Paid

(1,137,916)

(916,501)

Cash Payment to Employees

(50,596,125)

(43,488,858)

Other Expenses Paid

(30,089,106)

(24,608,917)

90,085,108

73,755,413

47,514,814

(53,780,569)

-

-

Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions
Other Trading Assets

(132,804)

(100,946)

13,621,879

17,389,393

(253,141,823)

(503,960,407)

(5,089,651)

(4,473,076)

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities

-

-

Due to Banks and Financials Institutions

-

-

Loans and Advances to BFIs
Loans and Advances to Customers
Other Assets

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposit from Customers
Borrowings

-

-

231,642,254

320,032,471

-

-

12,032,253

(428,873)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Tax Paid

136,532,031

(151,566,595)

Income Tax Paid

(25,131,890)

(18,720,321)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

111,400,141

(170,286,916)

(1,006,641)

(28,475,866)

Other Liabilities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investment Securities
Receipts from Sale of Investment Securities
Purchase of Property and Equipment
Receipts from Sale of Property and Equipment

-

-

(11,439,329)

(13,135,919)

-

-

(395,500)

(1,340,971)

Purchase of Investment Properties

-

-

Receipts from Sale of Investment Properties

-

-

3,427,892

6,204,756

Purchase of Intangible Assets

Interest Received
Dividend Received
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
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182,197

212,267

(9,231,381)

(36,535,733)
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Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Issue of Debt Securities

-

-

Repayments of Debt Securities

-

-

Receipts from Issue of Subordinated Liabilities

-

-

Repayments of Subordinated Liabilities

-

-

Receipt from Issue of Shares

15,000,000

254,262,533

(32,500,000)

(1,526,316)

-

-

Other Receipts/Payments

(13,949,384)

(15,548,133)

Net Cash from Financing Activities

(31,449,384)

237,188,085

Dividends Paid
Interest Paid

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2075

70,719,376

30,365,435

691,370,333

661,004,898

Effect of Exchange Rate fluctuations on Cash and Cash Equivalents Held
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Asar 31, 2076

Bikash Singh Chauhan
Head- Finance
Biswa Raj Adhikari
Director
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Prakash Man Bajracharya
Chief Executive Officer
Manoj Kumar Parsai
Director

Sewak Dahal
Chairman
Prem Pd. Subedi
Director

-

-

762,089,709

691,370,333

Basanta Poudel
Director
Anita Khatri
Director

Kinjal Pokharel
Principal
Kinjal and Associates
Chartered Accountant
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246,356,300

Adjustment/Restated Balance as at Shrawan 01, 2074

-

Transactions with Owners, directly recognized in Equity

-

253,643,700
500,000,000

Total Contributions by and Distributions

Balance at Asar 31, 2075

-

Other(Share Premium Transferred to RE)

Cash Dividend Paid

29,000,000

Dividend to Equity-Holders

Bonus Shares Issued

-

Share Based Payments

224,643,700

-

Share Issued

-

Transfer from Reserves during the year

-

Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)

Transfer to Reserves during the year

-

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
-

-

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

-

-

Gains/(losses) on revaluation

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

644,823

618,833

(15,000,000)

-

-

-

-

15,618,833

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,990

-

25,990

Share
Premium
-

-

Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value

-

Profit for the year

-

275,356,300
(29,000,000)

Adjustment/Restatement

Comprehensive Income for the year

For the Year Ended 31 Asar 2076

General
Reserve
37,223,283

8,643,055

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,643,055

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

28,580,227

-

28,580,227

Exchange
Equalisation
Reserve
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Regulatory
Reserve

Attributable to Equity-Holders of Kankai Bikas Bank Limited

Share
Capital

Balance at Shrawan 01, 2074

Particulars

Kankai Bikas Bank Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fair Value
Reserve
-

(1,695,961)

(1,728,569)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,728,569)

-

-

-

-

(1,728,569)

-

-

-

32,608

32,608

Revaluation
Reserve
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,297,709

Retained
Earning
51,864,867

18,967,758

15,000,000

(1,526,316)

(29,000,000)

-

-

-

-

-

(10,062,324.00)

44,556,398

-

-

-

-

-

-

44,556,398

-

32,897,109

31,599,400

1,802,512

Other
Reserve
2,137,746

1,599,706

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(409,407)

1,419,269.00

589,845

-

-

589,845

-

-

-

-

-

538,040

(1,264,472)

590,174,757

281,744,483

-

(1,526,316)

-

-

-

240,262,533

-

(409,407)

-

43,417,673

-

-

589,845

-

(1,728,569)

-

44,556,398

-

308,430,274

-

307,062,738

Total
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Biswa Raj Adhikari
Director

Bikash Singh Chauhan
Head- Finance

Balance at Asar 31, 2076

Total Contributions by and Distributions

Other

Cash Dividend Paid

Manoj Kumar Parsai
Director

Prakash Man Bajracharya
Chief Executive Officer

515,000,000

48,655,596

11,432,313

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,432,313

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

37,223,283

General
Reserve

Prem Pd. Subedi
Director

Sewak Dahal
Chairman

644,823

-

-

15,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

15,000,000

-

Dividend to Equity-Holders

Bonus Shares Issued

-

Share Based Payments

-

Transactions with Owners, directly recognized in Equity
-

-

Transfer from Reserves during the year

Share Issued

-

Transfer to Reserves during the year

-

-

-

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

-

-

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

-

-

Gains/(losses) on revaluation

-

-

-

-

Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax

-

-

644,823

Share
Premium

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value

-

-

500,000,000

Share
Capital

Profit for the year

Comprehensive Income for the year

Balance at Shrawan 01, 2075

Particulars

Exchange
Equalisation
Reserve
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Regulatory
Reserve
7,077,728

7,077,728

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,077,728

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fair Value
Reserve

Anita Khatri
Director

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Revaluation
Reserve

Basanta Poudel
Director

(991,313)

704,648

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

704,648

-

-

-

-

704,648

-

-

-

(1,695,961)

Retained
Earning
42,211,892

(9,652,975)

-

(32,500,000)

(15,000,000)

-

-

-

-

429,306

(19,743,851)

57,161,570

-

-

-

-

-

-

57,161,570.00

-

51,864,867.00

Other
Reserve

615,886,943

25,712,187

-

(32,500,000)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

58,212,187

-

-

345,969

-

704,648

-

57,161,570

-

590,174,757

Kinjal Pokharel
Principal
Kinjal and Associates
Chartered Accountant

3,288,217

1,150,471

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(429,306)

1,233,809

345,969

-

-

345,969

-

-

-

-

-

2,137,746

Total

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

functional currency during the year under review. The
figures are rounded to nearest integer, except otherwise
indicated.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these Financial
Statements, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

1. REPORTING ENTITY
Kankai Bikas Bank Limited is registered at “Company
Register Office” under Company act 2063 and is licensed
by Nepal Rastra Bank under banking and financial act
2063 as ‘B’ class bikas bank. The bank started its operation
since 2064 Baisakh 20 and providing the financial services
in eastern region of Nepal i.e Jhapa, Morang & Ilam district.
The bank is promoted by a group of experienced and
highly motivated individuals from all groups. The promoters
include; professional bankers, Doctors, Entrepreneurs,
Educationalists and Technocrats. Besides, more number
of promoters includes from Damak municipality.
The Bank is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and its stock
symbol is “KNBL”.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
on accrual basis of accounting except the Cash Flow
information, which is prepared on a cash basis, using
the direct method. The financial statements comprise the
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or
Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Notes to the Accounts of the Bank. The
accounting policies are consistently applied to all the years
presented, except for the changes in accounting policies
disclosed specifically.

2.1. Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared and
approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and as
published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)
Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives,
2075.

2.2. Reporting Period
Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan
(mid July) of any year to the last day of Ashadh (mid July)
of the next year as per Nepali calendar.
Nepali Calendar

English Calendar

Current Year

2075/76

2018/19

Previous Year

2074/75

2017/18

Restated Date

Shrawan 01, 2074

July 16, 2017

Current Year

Shrawan 01, 2075 to
Ashadh 31, 2076

July 17, 2018 to
July 16, 2019

Previous Year

Shrawan 01, 2074 to
Ashadh 32, 2075

July 16, 2017 to
July 16, 2018

Period

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements of the Group are presented
in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Group
operates. Financial information is presented in Nepalese
Rupees. There was no change in the presentation and
Annual Report 2075/076

The Bank, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting
policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and
operating environment. Further, the Bank is required to
make judgments in respect of items where the choice of
specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be
followed could materially affect the financial statements.
This may later be determined that a different choice could
have been more appropriate. The accounting policies
have been included in the relevant notes for each item of
the financial statements and the effect and nature of the
changes, if any, have been disclosed. The NFRS requires
the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that will
affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial
statements. The Bank applies estimates in preparing and
presenting the financial statements and such estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically.
The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and are applied
prospectively. Disclosures of the accounting estimates
have been included in the relevant sections of the notes
wherever the estimates have been applied along with the
nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if
any.

2.5. Changes in Accounting Policies
The Company has consistently applied the accounting
policies to all periods presented in these ﬁnancial
statements except for new or revised statements and
interpretations implemented during the year. The nature
and effect of new standards and interpretations are
discussed in note that follows.

2.6. New Reporting standards issued but not
effective
For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32
Financial Instruments Presentation, NAS 39 Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7
Financial Instruments – Disclosures have been applied.
NFRS 9 has been complied for the classification of
Financial Instruments. Few carve-outs on applicable
Accounting Standards as provided by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the
Bank, the quantitative and qualitative impact of the same
have been disclosed in detail in Notes to the Accounts.
Further, a number of new standards and amendments
to the existing standards and interpretations have been
issued by International Accounting Standard Board after
the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.
Those become applicable when Accounting Standard
Board Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

2.7. Discounting
Non- current assets and liabilities are discounted where
discounting is material. Interest income and expenses
have been recognized on unwinding of ﬁnancial assets
and liabilities respectively.

2.8. Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately
in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature
or function are presented separately, unless they are
immaterial as permitted by the Nepal Accounting Standard
– NAS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.
Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a
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systematic manner which ensures the understandability
and comparability of Financial Statements of the bank.
Understandability of the Financial Statements is not
compromised by obscuring material information with
immaterial information or by aggregating material items
that have different natures or functions.

2.9. Prior Period Errors
Prior Period Errors are omissions or misstatements in an
entity’s financial statements. Such omissions may relate to
one or more prior periods. Correction of an error is done
by calculating the cumulative effect of the change on the
financial statements of the period as if new method or
estimate had always been used for all the affected prior
years’ financial statements. Sometimes such changes may
not be practicable. In such cases, it is applied to the latest
period possible by making corresponding adjustment to
the opening balance of the period.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied by the Bank in
the preparation of these ﬁnancial statements are presented
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless stated otherwise.

3.1. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of the Bank have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for the following material
items in the Statement of Financial Position:
 Available for sale investments (quoted) are measured
at fair value.
 Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized
at the present value of the defined benefit obligation
less the fair value of the plan assets.
 Financial assets and financial liabilities held at
amortized cost at measured using a rate that is a close
approximation of effective interest rate.

combinations that occurred before the date of transition
to NFRSs). However, if a first-time adopter restates any
business combination to comply with NFRS 3 it shall
restate all later business combinations and shall also apply
NFRS 10 from that same date.
b. Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)
Reporting entity also attributes total comprehensive income
to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
The bank presents non-controlling interests in its
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from the equity of the owners of the parent. The
group attributes the profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income to the owners of the
parent and to the non-controlling interests. The proportion
allocated to the Kankai Bikas Bank and non-controlling
interests are determined on the basis of present ownership
interests.
However, bank does not have a Subsidiary. So the noncontrolling interest has not been calculated separately.
c. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Bank.
The Bank is presumed to control an investee when
it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. At each
reporting date the Bank reassesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more elements of control mentioned
above.

3.2 Basis of consolidation

The Financial Statements of Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Bank and continue to be consolidated until the date
when such control ceases. The Financial Statements of the
Bank’s Subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
year as per the Bank, using consistent accounting policies.

a. Business Combinations and Goodwill

However, bank does not have any subsidiary.

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method as per the requirements of Nepal
Financial Reporting Standard - NFRS 03 (Business
Combinations). The Bank measures goodwill as the
fair value of the consideration transferred including the
recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree, less the net recognized amount (generally fair
value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, all measured as of the acquisition date. When
the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is
immediately recognized in the profit or loss.
The Bank elects on a transaction-by transaction basis
whether to measure non-controlling interest at its fair value,
or at its proportionate share of the recognized amount of
the identifiable net assets, at the acquisition date. The
consideration transferred does not include amounts
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.
Transactions costs, other than those associated with the
issue of debt or equity securities, that the Bank incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as
incurred.
The Bank has applied Exemptions for NFRS 3 as stated in
Appendix C as follows:
A first-time adopter may elect not to apply NFRS 3
retrospectively to past business combinations (business
10

d. Loss of Control
When the Bank loses control over a Subsidiary, it
derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the former
subsidiary from the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Bank recognizes any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at its fair value when control is
lost and subsequently accounts for it and for any amounts
owed by or to the former subsidiary in accordance with
relevant NFRSs. That fair value shall be regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset in
accordance with relevant NFRS or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture. The Bank recognizes the gain or loss
associated with the loss of control attributable to the former
controlling interest.
However, Bank does not have any subsidiary.
e. Special Purpose Entity (SPE)
An entity may be created to accomplish a narrow and
well-defined objective (eg. to effect a lease, research
and development activities or a securitization of financial
assets). Such a special purpose entity (‘SPE’) may take the
form of a corporation, trust, partnership or unincorporated
entity. SPEs often are created with legal arrangements
that impose strict and sometimes permanent limits on
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the decision-making powers of their governing board,
trustee or management over the operations of the SPE.
Examples of SPEs include entities set up to effect a lease,
a securitization of financial assets, or R&D activities. Nepal
Financial Reporting Standard 10 Consolidated Financial
Statement is applicable in relation to consolidation of
special purpose entity.
The Bank does not have any special purpose entity.
f. Transaction elimination on consolidation
In consolidating a subsidiary, the group eliminates full
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between the
subsidiary and the bank (profits or losses resulting from
intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets,
such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full).
The bank does not have any subsidiary.

3.3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances
with banks and money at call and at short notice. These
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value
and are used by the Bank in the management of short term
commitments.
Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in
Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

3.4
Financial assets and Financial
Liabilities
Initial Recognition
a. Date of Recognition
All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on
the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This
includes ‘regular way trades’. Regular way trade means
purchases or sales of financial assets that required delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
b. Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial
Instruments
The classification of financial instruments at the initial
recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics
and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All
financial instruments are measured initially at their fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to acquisition or issue of such financial instruments except
in the case of such financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, as per the Nepal Accounting
Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement). Transaction costs in relation to
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are dealt with the Statement of Profit or Loss.
Classification and Subsequent
Financial Instruments

Measurement

of

Classification and
Financial Assets

Measurement

of

Subsequent

At the inception, a financial asset is classified into one of
the following:
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
i. Financial assets held for trading
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ii. Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(b) Held to Maturity Financial Assets
(c) Loans and Receivables
(d) Financial assets available for sale
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification.
(a) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit
or loss if it is held for trading or is designated at fair value
through profit or loss.
(a) (i)

Financial Assets Held for Trading

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a
portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit
or position taking. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by Bank that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS) 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.
Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the
Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized in ‘Net trading income’. Dividend
income is recorded in ‘Net trading income’ when the right
to receive the payment has been established
Bank evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other
than derivatives, to determine whether the intention to sell
them in the near future is still appropriate. When Bank
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intention to sell them in the
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Bank may
elect to reclassify these financial assets. Financial assets
held for trading include instruments such as government
securities and equity instruments that have been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term.
(a) (ii) Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss
Bank designates financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss in the following circumstances:






Such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces
measurement
or
recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets.
The assets are part of a group of Financial assets,
financial liabilities or both, which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.
The assets contain one or more embedded
derivatives that significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise have been required
under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Net gain
or loss on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or losses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
Interest earned is accrued under ‘Interest income’, using
the effective interest rate method, while dividend income is
recorded under ‘Other operating income’ when the right to
receive the payment has been established.
The Bank has not designated any financial assets upon
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initial recognition as designated at fair value through profit
or loss.
(b) Held to Maturity Financial Assets
Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities which the Bank has the intention and
ability to hold to maturity. After the initial measurement,
held to maturity financial investments are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate, less impairment. The amortization is included in
‘Interest income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The
losses arising from impairment of such investments are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
(c) Loans and Receivables from Customers
Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market, other than:





Those that the Bank intends to sell immediately
or in the near term and those that the Bank,
upon initial recognition, designates as fair value
through profit or loss.
Those that the Bank, upon initial recognition,
designates as available for sale
Those for which the Bank may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment through
contractual cash flows, other than because of
credit deterioration.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate, less allowance for impairment.
Within this category, loans and advances to the customers
have been recognized at amortized cost using the method
that very closely approximates effective interest rate
method. The amortization is included in ‘Interest Income’
in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in ‘Impairment charge /
reversal for loans and other losses’ in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.
(d) Financial Assets Available for Sale
Available for sale financial assets include equity and debt
securities. Equity Investments classified as ‘Available for
Sale’ are those which are neither classified as ‘Held for
Trading’ nor ‘Designated at fair value through profit or
loss’. Debt securities in this category are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes
in the market conditions.
After initial measurement, available for sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in
equity through ‘Other comprehensive income / expense’
in the ‘Available for sale reserve’. When the investment
is disposed of the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in equity is recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss under ‘Other operating income’. Where Bank
holds more than one investment in the same security, they
are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in-first-out basis.
Interest earned whilst holding ‘Available for sale financial
investments’ is reported as ‘Interest income’ using the
effective interest rate. Dividend earned whilst holding
‘Available for sale financial investments’ are recognized
in the Statement of Profit or Loss as ‘other operating
income’ when the right to receive the payment has been
established. The losses arising from impairment of such
investments are recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss under ‘Impairment charge for loans and other losses’
and removed from the ‘Available for sale reserve’.
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Financial assets under AFS that are monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency – translation differences
related to changes in the amortized cost of the security are
recognized in income statement and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive
income.
In the normal course of business, the fair value of a
financial instrument on initial recognition is the transaction
price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given or
received). In certain circumstances, however, the fair
value will be based on other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument, without modification
or repackaging, or on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable markets, such
as interest rate yield, option volatilities and currency rates.
When such evidence exists, the Bank recognizes a trading
gain or loss on inception of the financial instrument, being
the difference between the transaction price and fair value.
When unobservable market data have a significant impact
on the valuation of financial instruments, the entire initial
difference in fair value from the transaction price as indicated
by the valuation model is not recognized immediately in
the income statement. Instead, it is recognized over the life
of the transaction on an appropriate basis, when the inputs
become observable, the transaction matures or is closed
out, or when the Bank enters into an offsetting transaction.
Classification and
Financial Liabilities

Subsequent

Measurement

of

At the inception, Bank determines the classification of
its financial liabilities. Accordingly financial liabilities are
classified as:
(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss
i. Financial liabilities held for trading
ii. Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(b) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
(a) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value
through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized
in profit or loss.
(a) (i) Financial Liabilities Held for Trading
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a
portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or
position taking. This category includes derivative financial
instrument entered into by Bank that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).
a) (ii) Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss
Bank designates financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss at following circumstances:


Such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces
measurement
or
recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
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measuring the liabilities.
The liabilities are part of a group of Financial
assets, financial liabilities or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy
The liability contains one or more embedded
derivatives that significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise have been required
under the contract.

(b) Financial Liabilities At Amortized Cost
Financial instruments issued by Bank that are not classified
as fair value through profit or loss are classified as
financial liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance
of the contractual arrangement results in Bank having
an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial
asset to another Bank, or to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with another Bank under conditions
that are potentially unfavorable to the Bank or settling the
obligation by delivering variable number of Bank’s own
equity instruments.
After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Within this category,
deposits and debt instruments with fixed maturity period
have been recognized at amortized cost using the method
that very closely approximates effective interest rate
method. The amortization is included in ‘Interest Expenses’
in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Gains and losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized.
3.4.1 Reclassification of Financial Instruments
3.4.1. (a) Reclassification of Financial Instruments ‘At
fair value through profit or loss’
Bank does not reclassify derivative financial instruments
out of the fair value through profit or loss category when it
is held or issued.
Non-derivative financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition are not
reclassified subsequently out of fair value through profit or
loss category.
Bank may, in rare circumstances reclassify financial
instruments out of fair value through profit or loss category
if such instruments are no longer held for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term notwithstanding
that such financial instruments may have been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Financial assets classified as fair value through
profit or loss at the initial recognition which would have
also met the definition of ‘Loans and Receivables’ as at
that date is reclassified out of the fair value through profit
or loss category only if Bank has the intention and ability to
hold such asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
The fair value of financial instruments at the date of
reclassification is treated as the new cost or amortized cost
of the financial instrument after reclassification. Any gain
or loss already recognized in respect of the reclassified
financial instrument until the date of reclassification is not
reversed to the Statement of Profit or Loss.
If a financial asset is reclassified, and if Bank subsequently
increases its estimates of the future cash receipts as a
result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts,
the effect of that increase is recognized as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate from the date of the change in
estimate rather than an adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset at the date of change in estimate.
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3.4.1. (b) Reclassification of
Financial Instruments

‘Available for sale’

Bank may reclassify financial assets out of available for
sale category as a result of change in intention or ability or
in rare circumstances that a reliable measure of fair value
is no longer available.
A financial asset classified as available for sale that would
have met the definition of loans and receivables at the
initial recognition may be reclassified out of available for
sale category to the loans and receivables category if
Bank has the intention and ability to hold such asset for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.
The fair value of financial instruments at the date of
reclassification is treated as the new cost or amortized cost
of the financial instrument after reclassification. Difference
between the new amortized cost and the maturity value
is amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. Any gain or loss already recognized
in Other Comprehensive Income in respect of the
reclassified financial instrument is accounted as follows:
i) Financial assets with fixed maturity :
Gain or loss recognized up to the date of reclassification
is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. If the financial
asset is subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss
that has been recognized in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
ii) Financial assets without fixed maturity :
Gain or loss recognized up to the date of reclassification
is recognized in profit or loss only when the financial asset
is sold or otherwise disposed of. If the financial asset is
subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that
has been recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
If a financial asset is reclassified, and if Bank subsequently
increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result
of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the
effect of that increase is recognized as an adjustment to
the effective interest rate from the date of the change in
estimate rather than an adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset at the date of change in estimate.
3.4.1. (c) Reclassification of ‘Held to Maturity’ Financial
Instruments
As a result of a change in intention or ability, if it is no
longer appropriate to classify an investment as held to
maturity, Bank may reclassify such financial assets as
available for sale and re- measured at fair value. Any
difference between the carrying value of the financial
asset before reclassification and fair value is recognized in
equity through other comprehensive income.
However, if Bank were to sell or reclassify more than an
insignificant amount of held to maturity investments before
maturity [other than in certain specific circumstances
permitted in Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39(Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement)], the
entire category would be tainted and would have to be
reclassified as ‘Available for sale’. Furthermore, Bank
would be prohibited from classifying any financial assets
as ‘Held to Maturity’ during the following two years. These
reclassifications are at the election of management and
determined on an instrument by instrument basis.
3.4.2 De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
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3.4.2. (a) De-recognition of Financial Assets
Bank derecognizes a financial asset (or where applicable a
part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) when:




The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or
Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or
Bank has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement
and either Bank has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset or it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying
amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized)
and the sum of the consideration received (including any
new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.
When Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized
to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, Bank also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that Bank has retained.
When Bank’s continuing involvement that takes the form
of guaranteeing the transferred asset, the extent of the
continuing involvement is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration received by Bank that Bank could
be required to repay.
When securities classified as available for sale are sold,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to income
statement as gains and losses from investment securities.
3.4.2. (b) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized
in profit or loss.
3.4.2. (c) Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase
Agreements
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase at a
specified future date are not de-recognized from the
Statement of Financial Position as the Bank retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. The
corresponding cash received is recognized in the Statement
of Financial Position as a liability with a corresponding
obligation to return it, including accrued interest under
‘Securities sold under repurchase agreements’, reflecting
the transaction’s economic substance to the Bank. The
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difference between the sale and repurchase prices is
treated as interest expense and is accrued over the life
of the agreement using the effective interest rate. When
the bank has the right to sell or re-pledge the securities,
the Bank reclassifies those securities in its Statement of
Financial Position as ‘Financial assets held for trading
pledged as collateral or ‘Financial assets available for sale
pledged as collateral, as appropriate.
Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to
resell at future date are not recognized in the Statement
of Financial Position. The consideration paid, including
accrued interest, is recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position, under “Reverse repurchase agreements’
reflecting the transaction’s economic substance to the
Bank. The difference between the purchase and resale
prices is recorded as ‘Interest income’ and is accrued
over the life of the agreement using the effective interest
rate. If securities purchased under agreement to resell are
subsequently sold to third parties, the obligation to return
the securities is recorded as a short sale within ‘Financial
liabilities held for trading’ and measured at fair value with
any gains or losses included in ‘Net trading income’.
Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial
Position when and only when Bank has a legal right to set
off the recognized amounts and it intends either to settle
on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented on a
net basis only when permitted under NFRSs or for gains
and losses arising from a group of similar transaction such
as in trading activity.
Amortized Cost Measurement
The Amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the
amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured
at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of any difference between the initial
amount recognized and the maturity amount, minus any
reduction for impairment.
Fair Value Measurement
‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Bank has access
at that date. The fair value of liability reflects its nonperformance risk. When available, the Bank measures the
fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument (Level 01 valuation). A
market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset
or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume
to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis on an
arm’s length basis.
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Bank uses valuation techniques that maximize the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction. Valuation
techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions
between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available),
reference to the current fair value of other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analyses and option pricing models. Inputs to valuation
techniques reasonably represent market expectations and
measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the financial
instrument. The Bank calibrates valuation techniques and
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tests them for validity using prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument or based on
other available observable market data. Assets and long
positions are measured at a bid price; liabilities and short
positions are measured at an ask price. Where the Bank
has positions with offsetting risks, mid-market prices are
used to measure the offsetting risk positions and a bid or
asking price adjustment is applied only to net open position
as appropriate.
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument
at initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e.
the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the
Bank determines that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and the fair value is
evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market
for an identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation)nor
based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets (Level 02 valuation), then the financial
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted
to defer the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that
difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate
basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when
the valuation is wholly supported by observable market
data or the transaction is closed out.
Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and
include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the
Bank entity and the counterparty where appropriate. Fair
value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any
other factors, such as liquidity risk or model uncertainties;
to the extent that the Bank believes a third-party market
participant would take them into account in pricing a
transaction.
The fair value of a demand deposit is not less than the
amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date
on which the amount could be required to be paid.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Bank recognizes transfers between levels of the fair
value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.
3.4.3 Impairment of Financial Assets
Bank assesses at each reporting date, whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if and only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events, that have occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an ‘incurred loss event’) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include: indications that
the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing
significant financial difficulty; the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments; and where
observable data indicates that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

3.4.3. (a) Impairment of Financial Assets carried at
Amortized Cost
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, such as
amounts due from banks, held to maturity investments
etc., Bank first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are
individually significant or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. In the event Bank
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics such as collateral type, past due status
and other relevant factors and collectively assesses them
for impairment. However, assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognized in the income statement.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current closely
approximates effective interest rate. If the Bank has
reclassified trading assets to loans and advances, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the new
closely approximates effective interest rate determined at
the reclassification date. The calculation of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized
financial assets reflects the cash flows that may result
from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
3.4.3. (a) (i) Individually Assessed Financial Assets
The criteria used to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment include and not limited to:
 Known Cash Flow difficulties experienced by the
borrowers:
 Past due contractual payments of either principal
or interest;
 Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
 The probability that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; and
 A significant downgrading in credit rating by an
external credit rating agency.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets measured at amortized cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured by discounting
the expected future cash flows of a financial asset at its
original effective interest rate and comparing the resultant
present value with the financial asset’s current carrying
amount. The impairment allowances on individually
significant accounts are reviewed more regularly when
circumstances require. This normally encompasses reassessment of the enforceability of any collateral held and
the timing and amount of actual and anticipated receipts.
Individually assessed impairment allowances are only
released when there is reasonable and objective evidence
of reduction in the established loss estimate. Interest on
impaired assets continues to be recognized through the
unwinding of the discount.
Loans together with the associated allowance are written
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off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred
to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
impairment charges for loans and other losses.
When impairment losses are determined for those
financial assets where objective evidence of impairment
exists, the following common factors are considered:
 Bank’s aggregate exposure to the customer;
 The viability of the customer’s business model
and their capacity to trade successfully out of
financial difficulties and generate sufficient cash
flows to service debt obligations;
 The amount and timing of expected receipts and
recoveries;
 The extent of other creditors ‘commitments
ranking ahead of, or pari-pasu with the Bank
and the likelihood of other creditors continuing to
support the company;
 The realizable value of security and likelihood of
successful repossession;
3.4.3. (a) (ii) Collectively Assessed Financial Assets
Impairment is assessed on a collective basis in two
circumstances:
 To cover losses which have been incurred but
have not yet been identified on loans subject to
individual assessment; and
 For homogeneous groups of loans that are not
considered individually significant.
Incurred but not yet identified impairment
Individually assessed financial assets for which no
evidence of loss has been specifically identified on an
individual basis are grouped together according to their
credit risk characteristics for the purpose of calculating an
estimated collective loss. This reflects impairment losses
that the bank has incurred as a result of events occurring
before the reporting date, which the Bank is not able to
identify on an individual loan basis and that can be reliably
estimated.
These losses will only be individually identified in the
future. As soon as information becomes available which
identifies losses on individual financial assets within the
group, those financial assets are removed from the group
and assessed on an individual basis for impairment.
The collective impairment allowance is determined after
taking into account:
 Historical Loss Experience in portfolios of similar
credit risk; and
 Management’s experienced judgment as to
whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual level of inherent losses at
the reporting date is like to be greater or less than
that suggested by historical experience.
Homogeneous groups of Financials Assets
Statistical methods are used to determine impairment
losses on a collective basis for homogenous groups
of financial assets. Losses in these groups of financial
assets are recorded on an individual basis when individual
financial assets are written off, at which point they are
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removed from the group.
Bank uses the following method to calculate historical loss
experience on collective basis:
After grouping of loans on the basis of homogeneous
risks, the Bank uses net flow rate method. Under this
methodology the movement in the outstanding balance
of customers into default categories over the periods
are used to estimate the amount of financial assets that
will eventually be irrecoverable, as a result of the events
occurring before the reporting date which the Bank is not
able to identify on an individual loan basis.
Under this methodology, loans are grouped into ranges
according to the number of days in arrears and statistical
analysis is used to estimate the likelihood that loans in
each range will progress through the various stages of
delinquency and ultimately prove irrecoverable.
Current economic conditions and portfolio risk factors are
also evaluated when calculating the appropriate level of
allowance required to cover inherent loss. These additional
macro and portfolio risk factors may include:
 Recent loan portfolio growth and product mix
 Unemployment rates
 Gross Domestic Production (GDP)Growth
 Inflation
 Interest rates
 Changes in government laws and regulations
 Property prices
 Payment status
3.4.3. (a) (iii) Reversal of Impairment
If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a
subsequent period and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the excess is written back by reducing the
financial asset Impairment allowance account accordingly.
The write-back is recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss.
3.4.3. (a) (iv) Write-off of Financial Assets Carried At
Amortized Cost
Financial assets (and the related impairment allowance
accounts) are normally written off either partially or in full,
when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where financial
assets are secured, this is generally after receipt of any
proceeds from the realization of security.
3.4.3. (a) (v) Impairment of Rescheduled Loans and
Advances
Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans
rather than to take possession of collateral. This may
involve extending the payment arrangements and the
agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have
been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using
the original EIR as calculated before the modification
of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due.
Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to
ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments
are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to
a criteria are met and that future payments are likely to
occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual
or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the
loan’s original effective interest rate (EIR).
3.4.3. (a) (vi) Collateral Valuation
The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to
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mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes
in various forms such as cash, securities, letters of credit/
guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other
non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as
netting agreements. The fair value of collateral is generally
assessed, at a minimum, at inception and based on the
guidelines issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank. Non-financial
collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data
provided by third parties such as independent valuator and
audited financial statements.
3.4.3. (a) (vii) Collateral Legally Repossessed or Where
Properties have Devolved to the Bank
Legally Repossessed Collateral represents Non-Financial
Assets acquired by the Bank in settlement of the overdue
loans. The assets are initially recognized at fair value when
acquired. The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a
repossessed asset is best used for its internal operations or
should be sold. The proceeds are used to reduce or repay
the outstanding claim. The immovable property acquired
by foreclosure of collateral from defaulting customers, or
which has devolved on the Bank as part settlement of debt,
has not been occupied for business use.
These assets are shown as Legally Repossessed
Collateral under “Other Assets.”
3.4.3. (b) Impairment of Financial Assets – Available
for Sale
For available for sale financial investments, Bank assesses
at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence
that an investment is impaired.
In the case of debt instruments, Bank assesses individually
whether there is objective evidence of impairment based on
the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized
cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is
the cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized
in the Income Statement. Future interest income is based
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. If, in
a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
increases and the increase can be objectively related to
a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized, the impairment loss is reversed through the
Income Statement.
In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would also include a ‘significant’
or ‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized
in profit or loss is removed from equity and recognized in
the Statement of profit or loss. However, any subsequent
increase in the fair value of an impaired available for sale
equity security is recognized in other comprehensive
income.
Bank writes-off certain available for sale financial
investments when they are determined to be uncollectible.

3.5 Trading Assets
One of the categories of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is “held for trading” financial assets.
All financial assets acquired or held for the purpose of
selling in the short term or for which there is a recent
pattern of short term profit taking are trading assets.
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3.6 Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
A derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes
in response to the change in an underlying variable such
as an interest rate, commodity or security price, or index;
that requires no initial investment, or one that is smaller
than would be required for a contract with similar response
to changes in market factors; and that is settled at a future
date.
Forward contracts are the contracts to purchase or sell a
specific quantity of a financial instrument, a commodity,
or a foreign currency at a specified price determined at
the outset, with delivery or settlement at a specified future
date. Settlement is at maturity by actual delivery of the item
specified in the contract, or by a net cash settlement.
All freestanding contacts that are considered derivatives
for accounting purposes are carried at fair value on the
statement of financial position regardless of whether they
are held for trading or non trading purposes. Changes in
fair value on derivatives held for trading are included in
net gains/ (losses) from financial instruments in fair value
through profit or loss on financial assets/ liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

3.7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are
held for use in the production or supply of services, for rental
to others or for administrative purposes and are expected
to be used during more than one period. The Bank applies
the requirements of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS
16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these
assets. Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably measured.
Measurement
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for
recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequently
to add to, replace part of an item of property, plant&
equipment. The cost of self-constructed assets includes
the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended use and the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized
as part of computer equipment. When parts of an item of
property or equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.
Cost Model
Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs
of day–to–day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the equipment when that cost
is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.
Revaluation Model
The Bank has not applied the revaluation model to the any
class of freehold land and buildings or other assets. Such
properties are carried at a previously recognized GAAP
Amount.
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On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying
amount is recognized in ‘Other comprehensive income’
and accumulated in equity, under capital reserve or used
to reverse a previous revaluation decrease relating to the
same asset, which was charged to the Statement of Profit
or Loss. In this circumstance, the increase is recognized as
income to the extent of previous write down. Any decrease
in the carrying amount is recognized as an expense in
the Statement of Profit or Loss or debited to the Other
Comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the capital reserve in respect of that asset.
The decrease recognized in other comprehensive income
reduces the amount accumulated in equity under capital
reserves. Any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve
in respect of an asset is transferred directly to retained
earnings on retirement or disposal of the asset.
Subsequent Cost
The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an
item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within that part will flow to the
Bank and it can be reliably measured. The cost of day to
day servicing of property, plant and equipment are charged
to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Depreciation

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
an asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that the Bank incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.
De-recognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use. The
gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment is included in the Statement
of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized. When
replacement costs are recognized in the carrying amount
of an item of property, plant and equipment, the remaining
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
Major inspection costs are capitalized. At each such
capitalization, the remaining carrying amount of the
previous cost of inspections is derecognized.

3.8 Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Recognition

Depreciation is calculated by using the written down value An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset
method on cost or valuation of the Property & Equipment without physical substance, held for use in the production
other than freehold land and leasehold properties. or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for
Depreciation on leasehold properties is calculated by administrative purposes. An intangible asset is recognized
using the straight line method on cost or valuation of the if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
property. The rates of depreciations are given below:
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost
								
of the asset can be measured reliably. An intangible asset
Rate of Depreciation per annum (%)
is initially measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an
For the year
For the year
intangible item that was initially recognized as an expense
Asset Category
ended 16 July
ended 16
by the Bank in previous annual Financial Statements or
2019
July 2018
interim Financial Statements are not recognized as part of
the cost of an intangible asset at a later date.
Freehold Buildings
Motor Vehicles

20%

20%

Computer Equipment

25%

25%

Furniture, Office
Equipment

25%

25%

Amortization of Leasehold Assets
Cost incurred in respect of Leasehold Property are
capitalized as leasehold assets and amortized by using
the straight line method by dividing the remaining period of
agreement of household.
Changes in Estimates
The asset’s methods of depreciation are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.
Capital Work in Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in
the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery
and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital
work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant
asset when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.
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Computer Software & Licenses
Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software
costs incurred, licensed for use by the Bank, which are
not integrally related to associated hardware, which can
be clearly identified, reliably measured, and it’s probable
that they will lead to future economic benefits, are included
in the Statement of Financial Position under the category
‘Intangible assets’ and carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent Expenditure
Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when
it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset to
generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally
assessed standard of performance and this expenditure
can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. All
other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
Amortization of Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on
a straight–line basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss
from the date when the asset is available for use, over
the best of its useful economic life based on a pattern in
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which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the
bank. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate. The Bank assumes that there is no residual
value for its intangible assets.
De-recognition of Intangible Assets
The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is
derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss
arising on de recognition of an item of intangible assets is
included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item
is derecognized.

3.9 Investment Property
Investment property is property (land or a building or
part of a building or both) held (by the owner or by the
lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both but not for sale in the ordinary course
of business.
Measurement
Investment property is accounted for under Cost Model in
the Financial Statements. Accordingly, after recognition as
an asset, the property is carried at its cost, less impairment
losses. If any property is reclassified to investment property
due to changes in its use, fair value of such property at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting.
De-recognition
Investment properties are derecognized when they are
disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use since
no future economic benefits are expected. Transfers are
made to and from investment property only when there is
a change in use. When the use of a property changes such
that it is reclassified as Property, Plant and Equipment, its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
subsequent accounting.

Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts
expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax
rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on
the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior years.
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences except:


Where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination, and at the time of transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.



In respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits
and unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is
probable that the taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, carried
forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized except:


Where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination,
and at the time of transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.



In respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in Subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary difference will be utilized.

However, the Bank does not have any Investment Property
(Non-Banking assets) as on date.

Investment in Associates
Associates are those entities in which the Bank has
significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Investments in associate entities are
accounted for using the equity method (equity-accounted
investees) and are recognized initially at cost. The cost of
the investment includes transaction costs.
The Bank doesn’t have any associates. The Bank
considers that mere representation of the Bank in Board of
Directors doesn’t indicate significant influence.

3.10 Income Tax
As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income
Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount included
in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect
of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is
recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the
extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or
other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient profit will be available to allow the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.
Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
only to the extent that they relate to income taxes imposed
by the same taxation authority.
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3.11 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities
Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
are the Bank’s sources of funding. Deposits include noninterest bearing deposits, saving deposits, term deposits,
call deposits and margin deposits. The estimated fair value
of deposits with no stated maturity period is the amount
repayable on demand. The fair value of fixed interest
bearing deposits is considered as the interest receivable
on these deposits plus carrying amount of these deposits.
The fair value of debt securities issued is also considered
as the carrying amount of these debt securities issued.
Sub-ordinated liabilities are liabilities subordinated, at
the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors.

3.12 Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event,
the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. The amount recognized is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is determined based on the present value of those
cash flows. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized
when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of
meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision
is measured as the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected
net cost of continuing with the contract. Provision are not
recognized for future operating losses.
Before a provision is established, the Bank recognizes any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit or Loss net of any reimbursement.

3.13 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to Bank and the revenue can
be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.
Interest Income
For all financial assets measured at amortized cost,
interest bearing financial assets classified as Fair value
through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded using the rate that closely approximates the
EIR because the bank considers that the cost of exact
calculation of effective interest rate method exceeds the
benefit that would be derived from such compliance. EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability.
Further, Interest income on Loans and Advances is
recognized as per the guideline on recognition of interest
income, 2019 issued by NRB.
Fee and Commission Income
Fees earned for the provision of services over a period
of time are accrued over that period. These fees include
Service fees, commission income. Loan syndication fees
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are recognized as revenue when the syndication has
been completed and the Bank retained no part of the loan
package for itself, or retained a part at the same effective
interest rate as for the other participants. Portfolio and
other management advisory fees and service distribution
fees are recognized based on the applicable contracts,
usually on a time apportionment basis.
Dividend Income
Dividend income is on equity instruments are recognized
in the statement of profit and loss within other income
when the Bank’s right to receive payment is established.
Net Trading Income
Net trading income comprises gains less losses relating
to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized
interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as
wells as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets
and liabilities.
Net Income from other financial instrument at fair
value through Profit or Loss
Trading assets such as equity shares and mutual fund are
recognized at fair value through profit or loss. No other
financial instrument are designated at fair value through
profit or loss. The bank has no income under the heading
net income from other financial instrument at fair value
through profit or loss.

3.14 Interest Expense
For financial liabilities measured at amortized cost using
the rate that closely approximates effective interest rate,
interest expense is recorded using such rate. EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability.

3.15 Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include:
•
Short-term employee benefits such as the
following, if expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render
the related services:
i.
Wages, salaries and social security
contributions;
ii.
Paid annual leave and paid sick leave;
iii.
Profit sharing and bonuses, and
iv.
Non-monetary benefits (such as
medical care, housing, cars and free
or subsidized goods or services) for
current employees;
		
Short term employee benefits are measured on
an undiscounted basis and are expenses as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized
for the amount expected to be paid under short
term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the
Bank has present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.
•

Post-employment benefits, such as the following:
i.
Retirement benefits (eg: pensions, lump
sum payments on retirement); and
ii.
Other post-employment benefits such
as post-employment life insurance and
post-employment medical care;
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•

Other long term employee benefits and

•

Termination benefits

Post employments benefits are as follows:
Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which an Bank pays fixed contribution
into a separate Bank (a fund) and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee
benefits relating to employee services in the current and
prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards –
NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).
The contribution payable by the employer to a defined
contribution plan in proportion to the services rendered to
Bank by the employees and is recorded as an expense
under ‘Personnel expense’ as and when they become due.
Unpaid contribution are recorded as a liability under ‘Other
Liabilities’.
Bank contributed 10% on the salary of each employee to
the Employees’ Provident Fund. The above expenses are
identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’
as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards – NAS 19
(Employee Benefits).
Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan
other than a defined contribution plan. Accordingly, staff
gratuity has been considered as defined benefit plans as
per Nepal Accounting Standards – NAS 19 (Employee
Benefits).
Gratuity
In compliance with Labor Act, 2017, provision is made
in the account year of service, for gratuity payable to
employees who joined bank on a permanent basis.
An actuarial valuation is carried out every year to ascertain
the full liability under gratuity.
Bank’s obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned for their service in the current and
prior periods and discounting that benefit to determine its
present value, then deducting the fair value of any plan
assets to determine the net amount to be shown in the
Statement of Financial Position. The value of a defined
benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reduction on the future contributions to the
plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic
benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirement that apply to any plan in Bank. An economic
benefit is available to Bank if it is realizable during the life
of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.
Bank determines the interest expense on the defined
benefit liability by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the
annual period to the defined benefit liability at the beginning
of the annual period. The discount rate is the yield at the
reporting date on government bonds that have maturity
dates approximating to the terms of Bank’s obligations.
The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services
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provided by employees during the year (current service
cost) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ together with the net
interest expense. Bank recognizes the total actuarial gain
and loss that arises in calculating Bank’s obligation in
respect of gratuity in other comprehensive income during
the period in which it occurs.
The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation
are retirement age (58 years), early withdrawal from
service and retirement on medical grounds.
Unutilized Accumulated Leave
Bank’s liability towards the accumulated leave which
is expected to be utilized beyond one year from the
end of the reporting period is treated as other long
term employee benefits. Bank’s net obligation towards
unutilized accumulated leave is calculated by discounting
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods to
determine the present value of such benefits. The discount
rate is the yield at the reporting date on government binds
that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of
Bank’s obligation. The calculation is performed using the
Projected Unit Credit method. Net change in liability for
unutilized accumulated leave including any actuarial gain
and loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss
under ‘Personnel Expenses’ in the period in which they
arise.

3.16 Finance and Operating Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease,
or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset.
3.16.1 Finance Lease
Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as
finance lease. When Bank is the lessor under finance
lease, the amounts due under the leases, after deduction
of unearned interest income, are included in ‘Loans to &
receivables from other customers’, as appropriate. Interest
income receivable is recognized in ‘Net interest income’
over the periods of the leases so as to give a constant rate
of return on the net investment in the leases.
When Bank is a lessee under finance leases, the leased
assets are capitalized and included in ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ and the corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in ‘Other liabilities’. A finance lease and its
corresponding liability are recognized initially at the fair
value of the asset or if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Finance charges payable are
recognized in ‘Interest expenses’ over the period of the
lease based on the interest rate implicit in the lease so as
to give a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability.
3.16.2 Operating Lease
All other leases are classified as operating leases. When
acting as lessor, Bank includes the assets subject to
operating leases in ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and
accounts for them accordingly. Impairment losses are
recognized to the extent that residual values are not fully
recoverable and the carrying value of the assets is thereby
impaired.
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When Bank is the lessee, leased assets are not recognized
on the Statement of Financial Position.
Rentals payable and receivable under operating leases are
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the periods of
the leases and are included in ‘Other operating expenses’
and ‘Other operating income’, respectively.

3.17 Foreign Currency Transactions, Translation
and Balances
All foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency, which is Nepalese Rupees, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates when the
transactions were affected.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to Nepalese
Rupees using the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that
date and all differences arising on non-trading activities
are taken to ‘Other Operating Income’ in the Statement
of Profit or Loss. The foreign currency gain or loss on
monetary items is the difference between amortized cost
in the functional currency at the beginning of the period,
adjusted for effective interest and payments during
the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period.
Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items in foreign currency measured at fair
value are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.
Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement
or reporting of monetary items at rates different from
those which were initially recorded are dealt with in the
Statement of Profit or Loss. However, foreign currency
differences arising on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Forward exchange contracts are valued at the forward
market rates ruling on the reporting date. Both unrealized
losses and gains are reflected in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

3.18 Financial guarantee and loan commitment
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due. Financial guarantee contracts
may have various legal forms, such as a guarantee, some
types of letter of credit, etc. Where the bank has confirmed
its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of
a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, etc. whether
cancellable or not and the bank had not made payments at
the reporting date, those instruments are included in these
financial statements as commitments.

3.20 Earnings per share
Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS)
data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of Bank by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss
attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.
Earnings per share is calculated and presented in the face
of Statement of Profit and loss

3.21 Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of an entity:
•
that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including
revenues and expenses relating to transactions
with other components of the same entity),
•
whose operating results are regularly reviewed
by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to
make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and assess its performance, and
•
for which discrete financial information is
available.
Not every part of an entity is necessarily an operating
segment or part of an operating segment. For example,
a corporate headquarters or some functional departments
may not earn revenues or may earn revenues that are only
incidental to the activities of the entity and would not be
operating segments. For the purposes of this NFRS, an
entity’s post-employment benefit plans are not operating
segments.
Segment Reporting is not prepared

3.22 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Bank estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or the fair value of the Cash Generating Units
(CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre–tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate
valuation model is used.

3.19 Share capital and reserves

3.23 Dividend on Ordinary Shares

Share capital and reserves are different classes of equity
claims. Equity claims are claims on the residual interest
in the assets of the entity after deducting all its liabilities.
Changes in equity during the reporting period comprise
income and expenses recognized in the statement of
financial performance; plus contributions from holders
of equity claims, minus distributions to holders of equity
claims.

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability
and deducted from equity when they are approved by
the Bank’s shareholders. Interim Dividend is deducted
from equity when they are declared and no longer at
the discretion of the Bank. Dividend for the year that is
approved after the reporting date is disclosed as an event
after the reporting date.

3.24 Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement has been prepared using ‘The
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Direct Method’, whereby gross cash receipts and gross
cash payments of operating activities, finance activities
and investing activities have been recognized.

3.25 Comparative Figures

prospectively from the date of transition (i) the present
value of the defined benefit obligation, the fair value of the
plan assets and the surplus or deficit in the plan; and (ii)
the experience adjustments arising on the plan liabilities
and the plan assets.

The comparative figures and phrases have been
rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current
year’s presentation.

III. The Bank has designated unquoted equity Instruments
held as at 16th July 2019 and 15th July 2018 as Availablefor-Sale Investments.

3.26. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF NFRS

3.27 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

As stated in Note 2.1, these are the Bank’s first financial
statements prepared in accordance with NFRS.
The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied
in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended
16th July 2019, the comparative information presented for
the year ended 15th July 2018 and in the preparation of an
opening NFRS based Statement of Financial Position at
16th July 2017 (the date of transition).
Exemptions
NFRS 1 First- time adoption of Nepal Accounting
Standards allows first time adopters certain exemptions
from the retrospective application of certain NFRS.
The Bank and has taken the following exemptions.
I. Business Combinations
Not applied for subsidiaries, which are considered business
for NFRS, or in interest in associates and joint ventures
that occurred before 17th July 2016.
Use of this exemption means that the NAS carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities, which are required to
be recognized under NFRS, is their deemed cost at the
date of the acquisition. After the date of the acquisition,
measurement is in accordance with NFRS. Assets and
liabilities that do not qualify for recognition under NFRS are
excluded from the opening NFRS statement of financial
position.
The Bank did not recognize or exclude any previously
recognized amounts as a result of NFRS recognition
requirements. NFRS 1 also requires that the local
NAS carrying amount of goodwill must be used in the
opening NFRS statement of financial position (apart from
adjustments for goodwill impairment and recognition or derecognition of intangible assets).

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity
specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities,
observable market transactions or market information
might be available. For other assets and liabilities,
observable market transactions and market information
might not be available. However, the objective of a fair
value measurement in both cases is the same – to estimate
the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset
or to transfer the liability would take place between market
participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from
the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset
or owes the liability).
Fair values are determined according to the following
hierarchy:
Level 1 inputs
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date. Held for trading and
available for sale investments have been recorded using
Level 1 inputs.
Level 2 inputs
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

II. The Bank has elected to disclose the following amounts
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4. Notes to Financial Statements
4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Cash in Hand
Balances with BFIs
Money at Call and Short Notice

Asar end 2075

Restated

109,628,205

82,209,810

85,609,507

53,305,663

17,358,100

51,281,617

599,155,841

591,802,423

524,113,774

Other

-

-

-

Total

762,089,709

691,370,333

661,004,898

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Statutory Balances with NRB

Asar end 2075

Restated

33,385,352

80,900,166

27,119,597

Securities purchased under Resale Agreement

-

-

-

Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB

-

-

-

33,385,352

80,900,166

27,119,597

Total

4.3 Placements with Banks and Financial Instutions
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Placement with Domestic BFIs

-

-

-

Placement with Foreign BFIs

-

-

-

Less: Allowances for Impairment

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap

-

-

-

Currency Swap

-

-

-

Forward Exchange Contracts

-

-

-

Others

-

-

-

Held for Risk Management

-

-

-

Interest Rate Swap

-

-

-

Currency Swap

-

-

-

Forward Exchange Contracts.

-

-

-

Others

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total
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4.5 Other Trading Assets
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Treasury Bills

-

-

-

Government Bonds

-

-

-

NRB Bonds

-

-

-

Domestic Corporate Bonds

-

-

-

Equities

-

-

-

Other Trading Assets

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.6 Loan & Advances to BFIs
Particulars
Loans to Micro-Finance Institutions

Asar end 2076

Total

Restated

15,516,068

29,137,948

46,527,341

-

-

-

Other
Less: Allowances for Impairment

Asar end 2075

(155,161)

(291,379)

(465,273)

15,360,908

28,846,568

46,062,067

4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment
Particulars
Balance at Shrawan 01

Asar end 2076

465,273

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(136,219)

(173,894)

-

Charge for the year
Amount Written Off
Balance at Asar End

Restated

291,379

Impairment Losss for the year:
Recoveries/Reversal

Asar end 2075

-

-

-

155,161

291,379

465,273

4.7 Loans and Advances to Customers
Particulars
Loans and Advances measured at Amortized Cost

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

1,897,081,178

1,644,343,392

1,140,748,749

-

-

-

Collective Impairment

(20,375,004)

(17,579,058)

(12,079,078)

Individual Impairment

(1,547,371)

(3,124,066)

(2,357,139)

1,875,158,803

1,623,640,268

1,126,312,533

-

-

-

1,875,158,803

1,623,640,268

1,126,312,533

Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Amount
Loans and Advances measured at FVTPL
Total

4.7.1: Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Product
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Product
Term Loans

-

-

-

Overdraft

-

-

-

Trust Receipt/Import Loans

-

-

-

Demand and other Working Capital Loans

-

-

-

Personal Residential Loans

-

-

-

Real Estate Loans

-

-

-

Margin Lending Loans

-

-

-

Hire Purchase Loans

-

-

-

Deprived Sector Loans

-

-

-

Bills Purchased

-

-

-

Staffs Loans

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-Total
Interest Receivable

-

-

-

Grand Total

-

-

-
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4.7.2: Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Currency
Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Nepalese Rupee

Particulars

-

-

-

Indian Rupee

-

-

-

United States Dollar

-

-

-

Great Britain Pound

-

-

-

Euro

-

-

-

Japanese Yen

-

-

-

Chinese Yuan

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

Grand Total

-

-

-

4.7.3: Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Collateral
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Secured
Moveable/Immoveable Assets

-

-

-

Gold and Silver

-

-

-

Guarantee of Domestic BFIs

-

-

-

Government Guarantee

-

-

-

Guarantee of International Rated Bank

-

-

-

Collateral of Export Document

-

-

-

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt

-

-

-

Collatereal of Government Securities

-

-

-

Counter Guarantee

-

-

-

Personal Guarantee

-

-

-

Other Collateral

-

-

-

Subtotal

-

-

-

Unsecured

-

-

-

Grand Total

-

-

-

4.7.4: Allowance for Impairment
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Specific Allowance for Impairment
Balance at Shrawan 01

3,124,066

2,357,140

-

-

-

-

(1,576,695)

766,926

-

-

-

-

Write-Offs

-

-

-

Exchange Rate Variance on Foreign Currency

-

-

-

Impairment Loss for the year
Charge for the year
Recoveries/Reversals during the year

Other Movement
Balance at Asar End

-

-

-

1,547,371

3,124,066

2,357,140

17,579,058

12,544,351

-

-

-

-

2,571,153

5,034,707

-

-

-

-

Collective Allowances for Impairment
Balance at Sharawan 01
Impairment Loss for the year
Charge/(Reversal) for the year
Exchange Rate Variance on Foreign Currency
Other Movement

-

-

-

Balance at Asar End

20,150,211

17,579,058

12,544,351

Total Allowances for Impairment

21,697,582

20,703,124

14,901,491
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4.8 Investment Securities
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost

Asar end 2075

Restated

-

-

-

Investment in Equity measured at FVTOCI

29,955,044

28,948,403

472,538

Total

29,955,044

28,948,403

472,538

4.8.1: Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Debt Securities

-

-

-

Government Bonds

-

-

-

Government Treasury Bills

-

-

-

Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds

-

-

-

Nepal Rastra Bank Deposit Instruments

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

Less: Specific Allowances for Impairment

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.8.2: Investment in Equity measured at FVTOCI
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Equity Instruments
Quoted Equity Securities
Unquoted Equity Securities
Total

29,773,060

28,848,403

372,538

100,000

100,000

100,000

29,873,060

28,948,403

472,538

4.8.3: Information relating to Investment in Equities
Particulars

Asar end 2076
Cost

Asar end 2075

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Investment in Quoted Equity
NMB Hybrid Fund : 15,774 Shares of Rs. 10 Each

157,740

158,213

157,740

152,850

NABIL Equity Fund : 11,264 Shares of Rs. 10 Each

112,640

105,093

112,640

111,063

NLIC Ltd. : 2,199 Shares of Rs. 1,858.09 Each

2,859,604

1,981,299

2,859,604

2,308,950

Siddhartha Equity Fund : 967,748 Shares of Rs. 10 Each

9,677,480

9,764,577

9,677,480

9,251,671

Sanima Equity Fund : 500,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each
Citizen Mutual Equity Fund :1,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each
Soaltee Hotel Ltd. : 3,364 Shares of Rs. 244 Each
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Ltd. : 2,977 Shares of Rs. 852 Each

5,000,000

4,700,000

5,000,000

4,780,000

10,000,000

10,180,000

10,000,000

9,280,000

928,464

820,816

928,464

817,452

2,535,277

2,063,061

2,535,277

2,146,417

Investment in Unquoted Equity
Nepal Clearing House Ltd.: 1,020 Shares of Rs. 100 Each
Total

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

31,371,205

29,873,060

31,371,205

28,948,403

4.9 Current Tax Assets
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Current Tax Assets
Current year Income Tax Assets

2,223,088

1,832,474

834,630

-

-

-

Current year Income Tax Liabilities

-

-

-

Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods

-

-

-

2,223,088

1,832,474

834,630

Tax Assets of Prior Periods
Current Tax Liabilities

Total
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4.10 Investment in Subsidiaries
Particulars

Bank
Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

-

-

-

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

-

-

-

Less: Impairment Allowances

-

-

-

Net Carrying Amount

-

-

-

Total Investment

stm 4.10.1: Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

4.10.1: Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Asar end 2076

Particulars

Cost

Asar end 2075

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

……………………………………….….Ltd.
……………………..…Shares of Rs. ….. Each
Total

4.10.2: Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Asar end 2076

Particulars

Cost

Asar end 2075

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

…………………………………...…….Ltd.
………………….…Shares of Rs. ….. Each
Total

-

-

-

-

4.10.3: Information relating to Subsidiaries of the Bank
Particulars

Percentage of Ownership held by Bank
Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

…………………………………...…….Ltd.
…………………………………...…….Ltd.
Total

-

-

-

4.10.4: Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries
Particulars

Asar end 2076
…..Ltd.

…..Ltd.

…..Ltd.

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Asar End
Dividend Paid to NCI

Particulars

Asar end 2075
…..Ltd.

…..Ltd.

…..Ltd.

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Asar End
Dividend Paid to NCI

4.11 Investment in Associates
Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Investment in Quoted Associates

Particulars

-

-

-

Investment in Unquoted Associates

-

-

-

Total Investment

-

-

-

Less: Impairment Allowances

-

-

-

Net Carrying Amount

-

-

-
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4.11.1: Investment in Quoted Associates
Asar end 2076

Particulars

Cost

Asar end 2075

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

……….Ltd.
………Shares of Rs. ….. Each
Total

4.11.2: Investment in Unquoted Associates
Asar end 2076

Particulars

Cost

Asar end 2075

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

…………………………………...….Ltd.
………………..…Shares of Rs. ….. Each
Total

4.11.3: Information relating to Associates of the Bank
Particulars

Percentage of Ownership held by Bank
Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

………………………………………..Ltd.
…………………………………….....Ltd.

4.11.4: Equity Value of Associates
Particulars

Percentage of Ownership held by Bank
Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

……………………………...…..Ltd.
……………………………….…..Ltd.

4.12 Investment Properties
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrawan 01.

-

-

-

Addition/(Disposal) during the year.

-

-

-

Net Changes in fair value during the year.

-

-

-

Adjustment/Transfer.

-

-

-

Net Amount

-

-

-

Investment Properties measured at Cost

-

-

-

Balance as on Shrawan 01

-

-

-

Addition/(Disposal) during the year

-

-

-

Net Changes in fair value during the year

-

-

-

Adjustment/Transfer

-

-

-

Net Amount

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

Annual Report 2075/076

29

30

Annual Report 2075/076

-

Balance as on Asar end 2076

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation charge for the year

Impairment for the year

Disposals

Adjustments

As on Asar end 2075

Impairment for the year

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals

Adjustments

As on Asar end 2076

-

-

-

-

Net Book Value

As on Asar end 2074

As on Asar end 2075

As on Asar end 2076

Capital Work in Progress

-

As on Shrawan 01 2074

Depreciation and Impairment

-

Adjustment/Revaluation

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposal during the year

Capitalization

-

-

-

Addition during the Year

-

-

-

-

Balance as on Asar end 2075

-

-

-

-

-

Building

-

-

Adjustment/Revaluation

Acquisition

-

-

Disposal during the year

-

Capitalization

-

Acquisition

-

Addition during the year

Land

As on Shrawan 01 2074

Cost

Particulars

11,764,255

12,076,177

10,011,193

11,764,255

(4,528,754)

-

-

(2,137,988)

-

(2,390,766)

-

-

-

(2,390,766)

-

16,293,009

-

-

-

-

1,826,066

14,466,943

-

-

-

-

4,455,750

10,011,193

Leasehold
Properties

649,890

635,475

649,875

649,890

(158,897)

-

-

(31,285)

-

(127,612)

-

-

-

(29,200)

(98,412)

808,787

-

-

-

-

45,700

763,087

-

-

-

-

14,800

748,287

Computer &
Accessories

6,752,740

3,439,358

3,336,014

6,752,740

(4,758,548)

-

-

(1,346,775)

-

(3,411,773)

-

150,335

-

(775,615)

(2,786,493)

11,511,288

-

(1,149,844)

-

-

5,810,000

6,851,132

-

(255,275)

-

-

983,900

6,122,507

Vehicles

3,260,233

3,195,793

1,475,083

3,260,233

(4,616,977)

-

-

(1,520,535)

-

(3,096,442)

-

-

-

(1,142,913)

(1,953,529)

7,877,210

-

(35,112)

-

-

1,620,087

6,292,235

-

-

-

-

2,863,623

3,428,612

Furniture &
Fixtures

1,346,740

1,426,891

1,760,767

1,346,740

(2,197,344)

-

-

(317,826)

-

(1,879,517)

-

-

-

(333,876)

(1,545,641)

3,544,084

-

-

-

-

237,676

3,306,408

-

-

-

-

-

3,306,408

Machinery

11,376,149

10,934,251

8,622,388

11,376,149

(16,534,345)

-

-

(2,642,857)

-

(13,891,488)

-

138,509

-

(2,610,922)

(11,419,075)

27,910,494

-

(434,765)

-

-

3,519,520

24,825,739

-

(233,250)

-

-

5,017,526

20,041,463

Equipment &
others

35,150,008

31,707,944

25,855,318

35,150,008

(32,794,864)

-

-

(7,997,265)

-

(24,797,599)

-

288,844

-

(7,283,293)

(17,803,150)

67,944,872

-

(1,619,721)

-

-

13,059,050

56,505,543

-

(488,525)

-

-

13,335,599

43,658,468

Total Asar end
2076

-

-

-

31,707,944

(24,797,599)

-

288,844

(7,283,293)

-

(17,803,150)

-

-

-

-

(17,803,150)

56,505,543

-

(488,525)

-

-

13,335,599

43,658,469

-

-

-

-

-

43,658,469

Total Asar end
2075

4.13 Property and Equipment									

4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Particular

Software
Goodwill

Purchased

Developed

Other

Total Asar end
2076

Total Asar end
2075

Cost
As on Shrawan 01 2074

-

1,470,221

-

-

1,470,221

1,470,221

Addition during the year

-

1,340,971

-

-

1,340,971

1,340,971

Acquisition

-

-

-

-

-

-

Capitalization

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposal during the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

Adjustment/Revaluation

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance as on Asar end 2075

-

2,811,192

-

-

2,811,192

2,811,192

Addition during the Year

-

395,500

-

-

395,500

-

Acquisition

-

-

-

-

-

-

Capitalization

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposal during the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

Adjustment/Revaluation

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance as on Asar end 2076

-

3,206,692

-

-

3,206,692

2,811,192

As on Shrawan 01. 2074

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amortisation charge for the year

-

(517,728)

-

-

-

(517,728)

Impairment for the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

Adjustment

-

-

-

-

-

-

As on Asar end 2075

-

(517,728)

-

-

(517,728)

(517,728)

Impairment for the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amortisation charge for the year

-

(751,357)

-

-

(751,357)

-

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

Adjustment

-

-

-

-

-

-

As on Asar end 2076

-

(1,269,085)

-

-

(1,269,085)

(517,728)

Capital Work in Progress

-

-

-

-

-

-

Net Book Value

-

1,937,607

-

-

1,937,607

2,293,464

As on Asar end 2074

-

1,470,221

-

-

1,470,221

1,470,221

As on Asar end 2075

-

2,293,464

-

-

2,293,464

2,293,464

As on Asar end 2076

-

1,937,607

-

-

1,937,607

Amortisation and Impairment
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4.15 Deferred Tax
Particulars

Deferred Tax
Assets

Asar End 2076

Deferred
Tax
Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax Assets /
(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFIs

-

Loans and Advances to Customers

-

Investment Properties

-

Investment Securities

424,848.40

Property and Equipment
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan

424,848.40

130,213.25

130,213.25

2,732,143.80

2,732,143.80

Lease Liabilities

-

Provisions

726,840.73

Other Temporary Differences

731,191.66

Deferred tax on temporary differences

(726,840.73)
(731,191.66)
1,829,173.07

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2076

1,829,173.07

Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2075

(1,654,067.23)

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

(175,105.84)

Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss

(625,370.34)

Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in OCI

450,264.50

Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized directly in Equity
Particulars

Deferred Tax
Assets

Asar End 2075

Deferred
Tax
Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax Assets /
(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

-

Loans and Advances to BFIs

-

Loans and Advances to Customers

-

Investment Properties
Investment Securities
Property and Equipment
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan

726,840.61

726,840.61

28,452.71

28,452.71

2,356,806.30

2,356,806.30

Lease Liabilities

-

Provisions

726,840.73

Other Temporary Differences

731,191.66

Deferred tax on temporary differences

(726,840.73)
(731,191.66)
1,654,067.23

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2075
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2074
Origination/(Reversal) during the year
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in OCI

1,654,067.23
(1,454,634.76)
(199,432.47)
288,592.40
(488,024.87)

Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized directly in Equity
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4.16 Other Assets
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Assets held for Sale

Asar end 2075
-

Restated
-

-

Other Non-Banking Assets

-

-

-

Bills Receivable

-

-

-

Accounts Receivable

-

-

-

517,226

283,845

272,208

8,316,751

224,455

53,500

General Stationery
Sundry Debtors
Accrued Income
Prepayments and Deposits

-

-

-

1,148,802

1,461,868

894,472

Income Tax Deposit
Deferred Employee Expenditure
Other Assets
Total

-

-

-

1,603,512

1,513,056

149,875

2,894,128

4,356,617

3,014,431

14,480,419

7,839,840

4,384,486

4.17 Due to Banks and Financial Institutions
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Money Market Deposits

Asar end 2075

Restated

-

-

-

Interbank Borrowing

-

-

-

Other Deposits from BFIs

-

-

-

Settlement and Clearing Accounts

-

-

-

Other Deposits from BFIs

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Refinance from NRB

-

-

-

Standing Liquidity Facility

-

-

-

Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB

-

-

-

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

-

-

-

Other Payable to NRB

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.19 Derivative Financial Instruments
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap

-

-

-

Currency Swap

-

-

-

Forward Exchange Contracts

-

-

-

Others

-

-

-

Interest Rate Swap

-

-

-

Currency Swap

-

-

-

Forward Exchange Contracts.

-

-

-

Held for Risk Management

Others
Total
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-

-

-
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4.20 Deposits from Customers
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Institutional Customers:
Term Deposits.

-

-

-

554,151,926

541,427,044

511,969,978

Current Deposits.

-

-

5,529,793

Others.

-

-

-

Term Deposits

683,492,962

572,602,731

361,586,000

Saving Deposits

830,976,997

718,822,302

669,740,023

Current Deposits

52,474,164

56,576,718

20,389,529

100,000

125,000

306,000

2,121,196,049

1,889,553,795

1,569,521,324

Call Deposits

Individual Customers:

Others
Total

4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Nepalese Rupee
Indian Rupee
United States Dollar
Great Britain Pound
Euro
Japanese Yen
Chinese Yuan
Other
Total

-

-

4.21 Borrowings
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Domestic Borrowings
Nepal Government

-

-

-

Other Institutions.

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

Sub Total

-

-

-

Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions

-

-

-

Multilateral Development Banks

-

-

-

Other Institutions

-

-

-

Sub Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign Borrowings

Total

4.22 Provisions
Particulars
Provisions for Redundancy

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075
-

Restated
-

-

Provisions for Restructuring

-

-

-

Pending Legal Issues and Tax Litigation

-

-

-

Onerous Contracts

-

-

-

Other Provisions

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-
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4.22.1: Movement in Provision
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Balance at Shrawan 01

Asar end 2075

Restated

582,500

431,820

-

-

-

-

462,900

150,680

-

-

-

-

Provisions reversed during the year

-

-

-

Unwind of Discount

-

-

-

1,045,400

582,500

431,820

Provision Transfer from Merger/Acquision
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year

Balance at Asar end

4.23 Other Liabilities
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations

4,879,624

4,105,552

3,696,518

Liabilities for long service leave

3,254,996

4,227,522

3,750,469

Short term employee benefits

-

-

-

Bills payable

-

-

-

7,113,324

2,088,185

1,550,218

-

-

49,315

Interest payable on borrowing

-

-

-

Liabilities on defered grant income

-

-

-

5,026,345

182,990

187,823

-

-

-

Employee bonus payable

9,074,232

6,164,942

5,493,870

Other Liabilities

4,166,072

3,012,838

2,786,584

34,487,119

19,304,976

17,019,323

Creditors and accruals
Interest payable on deposits

Unpaid Dividend
Liabilities under Finance Lease

Total

4.23.1: Defined Benefit Obligation
The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Present value of unfunded obligations

-

Present value of funded obligations
Total present value of obligations

Restated
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fair value of plan assets

-

-

-

Present value of net obligations

-

-

-

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations

-

-

-

4.23.2: Plan Assets
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Equity securities

Asar end 2075

Restated

-

-

-

Government bonds

-

-

-

Bank deposit

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

Actual return on plan assets

4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Particulars
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

-

-

-

Actuarial losses

-

-

-

Benefits paid by the plan

-

-

-

Current service costs and interest

-

-

-

Defined benefit obligations at Asar end

-

-

-
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4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1

Asar end 2075

Restated

-

-

-

Contributions paid into the plan

-

-

-

Benefits paid during the year

-

-

-

Actuarial (losses) gains

-

-

-

Expected return on plan assets

-

-

-

Fair value of plan assets at Asar end

-

-

-

4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Current service costs

-

-

-

Interest on obligation

-

-

-

Expected return on plan assets

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Acturial (gain)/loss

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Discount rate

-

-

-

Expected return on plan asset

-

-

-

Future salary increase

-

-

-

Withdrawal rate

-

-

-

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

4.24 Debt secutities issued
Particulars
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss

-

-

-

Debt securities issued at amortised cost

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.25 Subordinated Liabilities
Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Redeemable preference shares

Particulars

-

-

-

Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

500,000,000

246,356,300

4.26 Share capital
Particulars
Ordinary shares

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

515,000,000

Restated

Convertible preference shares (equity component only)

-

-

-

Irredemable preference shares (equity component only)

-

-

-

Perpetual debt (equity component only)
Total
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-

515,000,000

500,000,000

246,356,300

Annual Report 2075/076

4.26.1: Ordinary Shares
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

7,500,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each

750,000,000

750,000,000

750,000,000

515,000,000

500,000,000

500,000,000

5,150,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each

515,000,000

500,000,000

246,356,300

Total

515,000,000

500,000,000

246,356,300

Authorized Capital
Issued capital
5,150,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Subscribed and paid up capital

4.26.2: Ordinary share ownership
Particulars

Asar end 2076
Percent

Asar end 2075

Amount

Percent

Amount

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government

-

-

-

-

"A" class licensed institutions

-

-

-

-

Other licensed intitutions

-

-

-

-

Other Institutions

-

-

-

-

Public

49.00%

252,350,000

49.000%

245,000,000

Other

51.00%

262,650,000

51.000%

255,000,000

-

-

-

-

100.00%

515,000,000

100.000%

500,000,000

Foreign ownership
Total

4.27 Reserves
Particulars
Statutory general reserve

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

48,655,596

Exchange equilisation reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve

Investment adjustment reserve

-

-

-

432,153

384,613

-

-

-

7,077,728

-

-

631,943

631,943

6,519

-

-

-

Capital reserve
Assets revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve

-

-

-

(991,313)

(1,695,961)

32,608

Dividend equalisation reserve
Actuarial gain

-

-

-

(328,659)

(674,628)

(1,264,472)

-

-

-

Special reserve
Other reserve
Total

28,580,227

649,981

Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve

Restated

37,223,283

2,334,952

1,748,278

1,411,380

58,030,228

37,665,067

29,150,875

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars
Contingent liabilities

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

56,637,000

48,230,000

6,863,000

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

-

-

-

Capital commitment

-

-

-

Lease Commitment

-

-

-

Litigation
Total
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-

56,637,000

48,230,000

6,863,000
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4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Acceptance and documentary credit

-

-

-

Bills for collection

-

-

-

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

-

-

-

8,700,000

3,000,000

5,350,000

Underwriting commitment

-

-

-

Other commitments

47,937,000

45,230,000

1,513,000

Total

56,637,000

48,230,000

6,863,000

4.28.2: Undrawn and Undisbursed Facilities
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Undisbursed amount of loans

-

-

-

Undrawn limits of overdrafts

-

-

-

Undrawn limits of credit cards

-

-

-

Undrawn limits of letter of credit

-

-

-

Undrawn limits of guarantee

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.28.3: Capital Commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

-

-

-

Approved and contracted for

-

-

-

Approved but not contracted for

-

-

-

Sub total

-

-

-

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

-

-

-

Approved and contracted for

-

-

-

Approved but not contracted for

-

-

-

Sub total

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

4.28.4: Lease commitments
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Restated

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating
lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year

-

-

-

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

-

-

-

Later than 5 years

-

-

-

-

-

-

Not later than 1 year

-

-

-

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

-

-

-

Later than 5 years

-

-

-

Sub total

-

-

-

Grand total

-

-

-

Sub total
Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating
lease, where the bank is lessee

4.28.5: Litigation
Explantory paragarphs are required for litigation contingent liablities as per their own case of each bank
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4.29 Interest Income
Particulars
Cash and cash equivalent

Asar end 2076

25,572,684

-

-

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with bank and financial institutions
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

-

-

3,427,892

6,204,756

270,859,587

206,128,060

-

-

945,020

973,558

-

-

301,445,308

238,879,057

Investment securities
Loan and advances to staff
Other Interest Income
Total interest income

Asar end 2075

26,212,810

4.30 Interest Expenses
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Due to bank and financial institutions

-

-

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

-

-

145,431,100

109,856,129

Borrowing

-

-

Debt securities issued

-

-

Subordinated liabilities

-

-

Other Charges

-

-

145,431,100

109,856,129

Deposits from customers

Total Interest expense

4.31 Fees and Commission Income
Particulars
Loan administration fees

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075
-

-

14,648,541

15,498,845

Consortium fees

-

-

Commitment fees

-

-

DD/TT/Swift fees

-

-

2,533,200

2,348,393

Prepayment and swap fees

-

-

Investment banking fees

-

-

Asset management fees

-

-

Brokerage fees

-

-

2,190,321

1,941,246

-

-

98,300

60,667

Commission on share underwriting/issue

-

-

Locker rental

-

-

Service fees

Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees

Remittance fees
Commission on letter of credit
Commission on guarantee contracts issued

Other fees and commision income
Total Fees and Commission Income
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985,916

226,188

20,456,277

20,075,338
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4.32 Fees and Commission Expense
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

ATM management fees

-

-

VISA/Master card fees

-

-

Guarantee commission

-

-

Brokerage

-

-

DD/TT/Swift fees.

-

-

Remittance fees and commission

-

86,406

Other fees and commission expense

1,137,916

830,095

Total Fees and Commission Expense

1,137,916

916,501

4.33 Net Trading income
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Changes in fair value of trading assets

-

-

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets

-

-

Interest income on trading assets

-

-

Dividend income on trading assets

-

-

Gain/loss foreign exchange transation

-

-

Other

-

-

Net trading income

-

-

4.34 Other Operating Income
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Foreign exchange revauation gain

-

-

Gain/loss on sale of investment securities

-

(55,767)

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties

-

-

182,197

212,267

(132,804)

(45,180)

Gain/loss on sale of investment property

-

-

Operating lease income

-

-

Dividend on equity instruments
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

-

-

Other Operating Income

356,940

344,325

Total

406,333

455,645

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFIs

(136,219)

(173,894)

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customers

1,219,250

6,266,906

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

-

-

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFIs

-

-

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

-

-

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

-

-

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

-

-

1,083,032

6,093,012

Total
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4.36 Personnel Expenses
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Salary

19,177,368

17,249,345

Allowances

17,355,962

15,576,656

Gratuity Expense

1,426,977

1,300,746

Provident Fund

1,497,540

1,257,884

Uniform

937,437

927,600

Training & development expense

836,462

797,695

1,722,914

1,413,780

423,949

413,146

80,002

89,961

Employees incentive

-

-

Cash-settled share-based payments

-

-

Pension expense

-

-

404,037

365,766

Leave encashment
Medical
Insurance

Finance expense under NFRS
Other expenses related to staff
Subtotal
Employees Bonus
Grand total

1,213,172

1,011,628

45,075,821

40,404,206

9,074,232

6,164,942

54,150,053

46,569,149

4.37 Other Operating Expense
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Directors' fee

358,500

312,500

Directors' expense

242,483

160,049

Auditors' remuneration

752,800

646,065

-

-

90,029

12,000

Office administration expense

6,418,693

4,820,849

Operating lease expense

5,125,357

4,238,159

Operating expense of investment properties

-

-

Corporate social responsibility expense

-

-

Onerous lease provisions

-

-

Other Expenses

17,101,244

14,419,296

Total

30,089,106

24,608,917

Other audit related expense
Professional and legal expense

4.38 Depreciation and Amortisation
Particulars
Depreciation on property and equipment

Asar end 2076
7,997,265

Depreciation on investment property
Amortisation of intangible assets
Total

Asar end 2075
7,283,293

-

-

751,357

517,728

8,748,622

7,801,022

4.39 Non Operating Income
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Recovery of loan written off

-

-

Other income

-

-

Total

-

-
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4.40 Non Operating Expenses
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Loan written off

-

-

Redundancy provision

-

-

Expense of restructuring

-

-

Other expense.

-

-

Total

-

-

4.41 Income Tax Expenses
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Current tax expense
Current year

25,131,890

18,720,321

Adjustments for prior years

-

-

Deferred tax expense

-

-

(625,370)

288,592

Changes in tax rate

-

-

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses

-

-

25,757,260

18,431,728

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total income tax expense
4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Profit before tax

81,668,090

63,565,311

Tax amount at tax rate of 30%

24,500,427

19,069,593

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose

-

-

Less: Tax effect on exempt income

-

-

Add/less: Tax effect on other items

-

-

-

-

24,500,427

19,069,593

30%

30%

Total income tax expense
Effective tax rate
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Kankai Bikas Bank Limited

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended 31 Asar 2076

(As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars

Asar end 2076

Asar end 2075

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss

57,161,570

44,556,398

Opening Retained Earning

51,864,867

32,897,109

Appropriations:

-

-

11,432,314

8,643,055

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund

-

-

c. Capital redemption reserve

-

-

d. Corporate social responsibility fund

217,828

432,153

e. Employees' training fund

335,467

75,518

-

-

251,207

286,173

-

625,424

Bonus Share issued

15,000,000

29,000,000

Cash dividend Paid

32,500,000

1,526,316

a. General reserve

f. Other
Deferred tax reserve
Investment adjustment fund

Share Premium Transfer to RE

-

(15,000,000)

49,289,621

51,864,867

(3,928,583)

-

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

-

-

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)

-

-

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+)

-

-

(1,829,173)

-

-

-

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)

e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+)
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)
Fair Value Reserve
Distributable profit or (loss)
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-

-

(328,659)

-

-

-

(991,313)

-

42,211,893

51,864,867
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4.42. DISCLOSURES
A. Staff Loans measured at fair value
Under previous GAAP, staff loans were recorded at cost
less repayments net of loan loss provision, if any. Under
NFRS, the Bank has to measure the staff loans granted
below the market interest rate at their fair value, calculate
based on the market interest rate of similar products.
The fair value of such loans as at Ashad 31 2076 is
Rs.10,603,819 and their previous GAAP carrying amount
was Rs. 12,207,331. The difference between the fair value
and GAAP carrying amount was Rs.1,603,512 has been
netted off against staff loans & recognized as pre-paid
staff cost in other assets.
On transition date Shrawan 1, 2074 was Rs.4,233,064 and
their previous GAAP carrying amount was Rs.4,382,939.
The difference between the fair value and GAAP carrying
amount has been netted off from staff loans & recognized
as pre-paid staff cost in other assets.
B. Adjustment on loan impairment
In compliance with the NRB Directives and subsequent
amendment there to, specific loan loss provision were
made based on the arrears time period and General
provision were made at a specified rate given by NRB time
to time.
The previously recognized loan loss provision amounting
to Rs 20.70 Mn was recognized as at Ashad end 2075.
As at Ashad 31 2076 the impairment provision of Rs.
21.92 Million was recognized. The movement between the
impairment balances of two years was recognized in the
Income Statement as an impairment charge.
Loans and advances are assessed individually and
collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared
with the loss provision prescribed by NRB directive no. 2. As
per recent Carve Outs, Higher of the loss as per incurred loss
model and NRB directive is considered for impairment
C. Financial Investments- Available for Sale
Under previous NAS, the Bank recognized its investment
portfolios which are not held for trading activities at
their cost. Under NFRS, the Bank has designated such
investments as available-for-sale investments and
measured at fair value. Such investments includes equity
investments, Mutual Funds.
At the date of transition to NFRS, there were no
investments in the quoted securities for which fair value
where to be recognized.
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As at Ashad 31 2076 the fair value of the investment
was Rs 29.87 Mn and GAAP carrying amount was Rs
31.37 Mn. The difference between the instruments fair
value and GAAP carrying amount was Rs 1.5 Mn has
been recognized in the available-for-sale reserve and
movement was charged to Other Comprehensive Income.
As at Ashad 32 2075 the fair value of the investment
was Rs.28.95 Mn and GAAP carrying amount was Rs
31.37 Mn. The difference between the instruments fair
value and GAAP carrying amount was Rs 2.42 Mn has
been recognized in the available-for-sale reserve and
movement was charged to Other Comprehensive Income.
D. Deferred Taxation
The deferred tax asset previously identified under NAS
accounts were reversed and relevant assets/liabilities
were recognized where necessary.
Deferred Tax Assets of Rs.1.38 Mn was created as on
16th July 2017 under previous GAAP. Under NFRS on
Deferred Tax Assets of Rs.1.45 Mn was created.
As on 15th July 2018 Deferred Tax Assets
was recognized as against the deferred
Rs.1.67 Mn in previous GAAP.
As on 16th July 2019 Deferred Tax Assets
was recognized as against the deferred
Rs.1.92 Mn in previous GAAP.

of Rs.1.65 Mn
tax assets of
of Rs.1.83 Mn
tax assets of

E. Interest Income
Income amounting to Rs.1.49 Mn was recognized for
financial year 2018/19 for accrual of interest on loans,
Interest benefit for staff loans and amortization of
development bonds as an impact of interest unwinding.
Income amounting to Rs.0.47 Mn was recognized for
financial year 2017/18 for accrual of interest on loans,
Interest benefit for staff loans and amortization of
development bonds as an impact of interest unwinding.
F. Personnel Cost
Additional expenses of Rs.1.33 Mn was recognized
as Personnel expenses as result of actuarial valuation
and, amortization of prepaid staff loan for Financial Year
2017/18.
Additional expenses of Rs.1.65 Mn was recognized
as Personnel expenses as result of actuarial valuation
and, amortization of prepaid staff loan for Financial Year
2018/19.
1. Bonus to staffs – as per the labour act, 10% bonus has
been levied Before bonus and tax.
2. Tax – tax has been computed on the basis of profit
computed from NFRS. The difference due to previous
year has been booked in deferred tax.
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5 DISCLOSURES AND ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

originator in the business and the approvers in the risk
function.

5.1

Credit Risk Mitigation (CRM)

Risk Management

The robust risk management capabilities is imperative in
order to achieve an effective risk management framework
and contain the risks associated with the business, a fully
functional Risk Management Committee is responsible
for identifying reporting, controlling and managing credit
risk, operational risk, market risk & liquidity risk. The Risk
Management Committee oversees global, macro, micro
and departmental level risk that arise out of daily business
operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to the
oversight of Senior Management, Risk Management
Committee and the Board committee to discuss the reports
thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.
Risk Management Committee:
The Risk Management Committee is an independent
committee of the Board of Directors that has, as its
sole and exclusive function, responsibility for the risk
management policies of the Bank and oversight of
implementation of risk management framework of Bank.
The committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities with regard to risk appetite that
the Bank is able and willing to assume in its exposures
and business activities, risk management, compliance
framework, and governance structure that supports it.
It periodically reviews the risk management process
to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness.
It also reviews whether the internal control and risk
management system is adequate or not to ensure wellordered and prudent conduct of business. The committee
is to reviews the overall risk management structure
and monitor the effectiveness of the risk management
system.

The banks following the following well defined procedures
to manage and mitigate the credit related risk at the
various level:						
		
The credit applications are initially reviewed at the branch
by the branch manager where the branch assess the
credit worthiness of the proposed borrower and the quality
of the security offered.				


As a second level of defence the central credit
department has been set up which independently
oversee whether the proceeding of the loan approval,
creditworthiness and collateral offered complies with
the bank's and central bank's norms.		



The credit proposal, if exceeds the prescribed
theshold are then reviewed by the Risk Management
Department which evaluates the underlying risk of the
proposal and decides whether the proposal is within
the risk appetite of the bank. This department is
independent of the business unit and reports directly
to the Board level committee, Risk Management
Committee.					



After due review and indentification of the underlying
risk by the Risk Management Department, the proposal
passed through different approving authorities
dependending upon the type of the proposal(funded
or unfunded), level of underlying risk and amount of
the proposal.		



Once the proposal is approved by the prescribed
approving authority, the security and post approval
proceeding and initiated and completed at the branch
level. The Credit Administration Department reviews
the security documents and ensure compliance
with the Bank's and Cental Bank's norms before
disburshment of the credit facilities.			
		



As a measure to mitiage the risk after mitigation, the
bank monitors, review the on the quarterly to annual
basis depending upon the type of the facilities. The
level of risk and early warning signals (EWS) are
identified on every review and necessary actions are
taken if required.



The internal audit function of the bank on the periodic
basis independently observes the compliance and
the status of the borrowers and recommends the
management with the best practices that has to
be adopted. The internal audit department directly
reports the Audit Committee which is a board level
committee.					



On the portfolio level, the bank risk management
strategies includes diversifying the borrowing pool,
risk based pricing, establising the suitable exposure
limits for borrowers and group of borrowers to ensure
the risk taken is under the risk appetite by the Risk
Management Policy of the bank.			

Risk Governance
Bank implemented policies and procedures to mitigate
the risk at enterprises level arising to the bank and has
trained risk culture among the employees by establishing
ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well
defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical
culture. The Risk Management Committee is responsible
for the establishment of, and compliance with, policies
relating to Operation risk & Credit risk.
The bank’s risk governance structure is such that the
responsibility for maintaining risk within the banks risk
blanket is dropped down from the Board to the appropriate
functional, client business, senior management and
committees. The Board has set policies and procedures
of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation,
and control/ monitoring in line with NRB directives, and
has effectively implemented the same at the Bank. The
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control system is
reviewed regularly by the Board, its committees, senior
management, and internal audit committee.			
				
Credit Risk
Credit risk management strategies include effectively
managing the risk of financial losses arising out of
booking an exposure on counterparty and also ensuring
independence of the credit risk function from the origination,
trading and sales function. Credit risk is managed
through a defined framework which sets out policies,
procedures and standards covering the measurement
and management of credit risk. Clear segregation
of duties has been established between transaction
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Operational Risk
Operational risk can be caused by both internal and
external sources, such as fraud, business interruptions,
system failures, damage to physical infrastructure,
failure in execution and service delivery, inherent risks in
products. The risk can occur in any business function or the
business supporting functions. The effect of failure in any
of the resources can have concurrent impacts across the
Bank. Effective operational risk management system aims
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to minimizing losses and customer dissatisfaction due to
failure in process, focusing on flows in product and their
design that can expose the bank to losses due to fraud
analyzing the impact continuity in the Bank’s operations.
Bank has introduced an “Operational Risk Monitoring
and Reporting Framework” all branches covering all
transaction on daily basis to minimize the operational risk.
The Risk Management Department is assigned with the
responsibility to undertake actions related to operational
risk management of the Bank.
			
Market Risk
The Bank recognizes market risk as the possibility for loss
of earnings or economic value to the Bank caused due to
adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or
prices of securities (equity), foreign exchange rates and
volatilities of those prices. Bank has an Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) which meets periodically
to discuss product pricing for deposits and advances and
maturity profiles of assets and liabilities, articulating interest
rate, view of bank, funding policy, transfer pricing policy and
balance sheet management. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market
interest rates (interest rate risk), and market prices (price
risk).

5.3

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that a company or bank may be
unable to meet short term financial demands. This usually
occurs due to the inability to convert a security or hard
asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the
process. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that
the Bank might be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due, as a result of mismatches in the timing of
the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.
Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for liquid
asset positions is not available to the Bank on acceptable
terms.
The Bank works continuously towards risk diversification
of its assets base so as to achieve better portfolio mix and
to protect/enhance the overall risk on its loan book. The
strategic focus of mapping business is gradually reducing
high-risk assets and increasing low risk exposures.

5.2 Capital management
Capital management approach is driven by its desire to
maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business and to meet the regulatory capital
requirements.

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortised Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the the classification of financial assets and liabilities:
			
As on 31st Ashar 2076
Financial Assets

Amortised
Cost

FVTPL

FVTOCI

Total

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

762,089,709

-

-

762,089,709

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

33,385,352

-

-

33,385,352

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

-

-

-

-

Derivative Financial Instruments

-

-

-

-

Other Trading Assets

-

-

-

-

15,360,908

-

-

15,360,908

1,875,158,803

-

-

1,875,158,803

Investment Securities

-

-

29,955,044

29,955,044

Investment in Subsidiaries

-

-

-

-

Investment in Associates

-

-

-

-

Investment Property

-

-

-

-

Loans and Advances to BFIs
Loans and Advances to Customers

Other Assets

12,876,907

-

-

12,876,907

2,698,871,679

-

29,955,044

2,728,826,723

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

-

-

-

-

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

-

-

-

-

Derivative Financial Instruments

-

-

-

-

2,121,196,049

-

-

2,121,196,049.00

Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities

Deposits from Customers
Borrowings
Other Liabilities
Debt Securities Issued
Total Financial Liabilites

46

-

-

-

-

34,487,119

-

-

34,487,119.00

-

-

-

-

2,155,683,168

-

-

2,155,683,168
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As on 31st Ashar 2075

Financial Assets

Amortised
Cost

FVTPL

FVTOCI

Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents

691,370,333

-

-

691,370,333

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

80,900,166

-

-

80,900,166

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

-

-

-

-

Derivative Financial Instruments

-

-

-

-

Other Trading Assets
Loans and Advances to BFIs
Loans and Advances to Customers

-

-

-

-

28,846,568

-

-

28,846,568

1,623,640,268

-

-

1,623,640,268

Investment Securities

-

-

28,948,403

28,948,403

Investment in Subsidiaries

-

-

-

-

Investment in Associates

-

-

-

-

Investment Property

-

-

-

-

Other Assets

6,326,785

-

-

6,326,785

2,431,084,119

-

28,948,403

2,460,032,523

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

-

-

-

-

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

-

-

-

-

Derivative Financial Instruments

-

-

-

-

1,889,553,795

-

-

1,889,553,795.00

-

-

-

-

19,304,976

-

-

19,304,976.00

-

-

-

-

1,908,858,771

-

-

1,908,858,771

Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities

Deposits from Customers
Borrowings
Other Liabilities
Debt Securities Issued
Total Financial Liabilites

5.4 Operating Segment Information
5.4.1. General information
Factors that management used to identify the entity's reportable segments					
An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue
and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Bank’s other components,
whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources
allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. 		
					
Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified three reporting
segment for the purpose of financial reporting: 				
5.4. 2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Particulars

Sector

Other

Total

Revenues from external customers

-

Inter Segment Expenses/revenues

-

Net Revenue

-

Interest revenue

-

Interest expense

-

Net interest expenses/revenue

-

Depreciation and amortisation

-

Segment profit /(loss)

-

Impairment of assets

-

Segment assets

-

Segment liabilities

-

5.4.3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
The transaction between the deparment are recorded using the interbranch and interdepartment account. These
accounts are reconciled and interdepartment balances are cancelled out at each reporting date. The interdepartment
revenue and expenses are the transfer pricing of the funds which is calculated using the bank's policy.		
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5.4. 4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The bank does not have any customer, which generate
more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.

a. Revenue

5.5 Share options and share based payment

Total revenues for reportable segments

-

Other revenues

-

Elimination of intersegment revenues

-

Entity’s revenues

-

b. Profit or loss
Total profit or loss for reportable segments

-

Other profit or loss
Elimination of intersegment profits

-

Unallocated amounts:

-

Profit before income tax

-

c. Assets

-

Total assets for reportable segments

-

Other assets

-

Unallocated amounts

-

Entity’s assets

-

d. Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments

-

Other liabilities

-

Unallocated liabilities

-

Entity’s liabilities

-

A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank
receives goods or services either as consideration for its
equity instruments or by incurring liabilities for amounts
based on the price of the entity’s shares or other equity
instruments of the entity. The bank does not have any
share option and share based payment.

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment
Contingent Liabilities:
Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on
behalf of its customers for guarantees issued, such as
for performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit
as part of the Bank’s transaction banking business for
which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at
the reporting date, those are included in these financial
statements as contingent liabilities.
Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable
letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of customers
to customs, for bids or offers.
Commitments:
Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide
funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the
form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not
made payments at the reporting date, those instruments
are included in these financial statement as commitments.

5.4. 5. Information about products and services

Please refer Note No. 4.28.1 to 4.28.4 for the detail of
contingent liabilities and commitments as at 16 July 2019.

Revenue from each type of product and
services:

Litigations:

Loans & Advances
Money at Call
Investment Securities
Remittance
Service Fees
Digital Banking Services
Foreign Exchange
Non Funded Credit Services
Other Allied Products and Services
Total Revenue before Interest Cost

5.4.6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas
Areas

Litigations are anticipated in the context of business
operations due to the nature of the transactions involved.
The Bank are involved in various such legal actions and
the controls have been established to deal with such legal
claims. There are pending litigations existing as at the end
of the reporting period against the Bank, resulting through
normal business operations.
The details of litigations is presented in 4.28.5.(Details of
such litigations if any)

5.7 Related Party Disclosures

The related parties of the bank as per the definition of
NAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” are as follows:
a) Associate Company

Domestic

S.N.

Province 1

1

Province 2
Province 3
Province 4
Province 5
Province 6
Province 7

Particulars

Bank’s
holding

Remarks

b) Key Managerial Personnel
Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Bank include
members of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and all top
level executives. Followings are a list of Board of Directors
and CEO bearing office at 16 July 2019.

Foreign
Total

5.4. 7. Information about major customers
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S.N.

Name of the Key Management
Personnel

Post

5.8 Merger and Acquisition
The bank has been acquired by Prime Commercial Bank
Ltd. and the joint operation has commenced from 15th
September 2019 (29th Bhadra 2076). After the acquisition,
the bank shall be operating as usual under the name
“Prime Commercial Bank Limited.”

1

Mr. Sewak Dahal

Chairman

2

Mr. Basanta Poudel

Director

3

Mr. Biswa Raj Adhikari

Director

4

Mr. Manoj Kumar Prasai

Director

5

Mr. Prem Prasad Subedi

Director

6

Mrs. Anita Khatrai

Director

5.9 Additional dislosure of non consolidated
entities

7

Mr. Prakash Man Bajracharya

CEO

Not appilcable

8

Mr. Rabindra Aryal

DCEO

5.10 Events after reporting date

9

Mr. Baiju Nath Thakur

Manager

Mr. Bharat Khanal

Manager

No events requiring the adjustment as per NAS 10 "Events
occuring after Reporting Period" are observed after the
reporting period.

10

All members of the Board are non-executive directors
and no executive compensation is paid to the directors.
Specific non-executive allowances paid to directors are
as under:
Board Meeting fees
Rs. 358,500.00
Other benefits
Rs. 100,360.00
Total
Rs. 458,860.00
These allowances and benefits are approved by the
Annual General Meeting of the Bank.
c) Compensation to Management Level Employees
Details of Key
Management
Personnel
Short-term employee
benefits

Total
Compensation
(Rs.)

Remarks

60,05,090.00

Salary and
allowance of
KMP

Post employee benefits
Other long term
benefits

* Post-employment benefits includes Gratuity. Provident
Fund is deposited in an independent institution and
Gratuity is provided for as per Employee Byelaws of the
Bank.
** Other long term employment benefit includes Home
Leave and Sick Leave encashment over and above the
accumulation limit set as per Employee Byelaws of the
Bank.
*** KMP also get accidental and medical insurance and
life insurance, vehicle, fuel, and mobile facilities as per
Employee Byelaws of the Bank.
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5.11

Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs

5.11.1. Reconciliation of equity
Particulars

Explanatory
Note

As at (Date of Transition)

Total equity under Previous GAAP

( As at End of last period
presented under previous
GAAP)

307,062,739

557,631,141

-

-

32,608

(1,695,961)

Revaluation of property & equipment

-

-

Recognition of investment property

-

-

Amortisation of debt securities issued

-

-

Deferred tax

-

-

2

(1,570,461)

(1,662,499)

3

1,378,411

1,706,114

Reclassification of proposed dividend

4

1,526,316

32,500,000

Reversal of NRB provision on investment

5

Adjustments under NFRSs:
Impairment on loan and advances
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan
Lease accounting
Particulars

1

Defined benefit obligation of employees
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain
Interest income
Other

663

1,695,962

Total Adjustment to equity

1,367,536

32,543,615

Total Equity under NFRSs

308,430,274

590,174,757

Explanatory note:
				
1.Measurement of investment securities at fair value
			

Investments were measured at cost less diminution in value. Under NFRS, these financial assets have been classified
as financials investment held for sale(FVTOCI). On the date of transition to NFRS, these financial assets have been
measured at their fair value which is higher than the cost as per previous GAAP, resulting in an increase in the carrying
amount as explained in the table below. These changes have been recongnised under Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI).			
Particulars

(15-Jul-2017)

(16-Jul-2018)

Increase in carrying amount due to fair value

46,583

Deferred tax impact on the increased amount

(13,975)

726,841

32,608

(1,695,961)

Net Decrease in Equity

(2,422,802)

2. Interest income
Particulars

(15-Jul-2017)

(16-Jul-2018)

Accrual interest income booking of loans and advances

1,378,411

1,706,114

Net Increase in Equity

1,378,411

1,706,114
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5.11.2.

Reconciliation of profit or loss
" For the year ended
31.03.2075 "
Particulars

Explanatory Note

(the latest period presented under
previous GAAP)
Profit/(Loss) for the year

Previous GAAP

43,215,277

Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income

833,913

Impairment of loan and advances
Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan

(365,766)

Defined benefit obligation of employee

(681,882)

Operating lease expense

-

Amortisation expense of debt securities

-

Other operating income

-

Interest expense
Depreciation & Amortisation
Deferred tax income/ Expense

(140,444)

Other
Fair Value Recognition
Reversal of provision on investment
Total Adjustment to profit or loss

1,695,299
1,341,120

Profit or loss under NFRSs

44,556,398

Other Comprehensive Income

(1,138,725)

Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs

43,417,673
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5.11.3. Explanatory Note on Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial
position
Particulars

"As at 31.03.2075
(End of last period presented
under previous GAAP)"

"As at 01.04.2074
(Date of Transition)"

5.11.3.1 Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances as per GAAP

1,124,493,250

1,622,716,018

1,969,158

2,437,306

Remeasurement of Staff Loan

(149,875)

(1,513,056)

Difference in GAAP and NFRS

1,819,283

924,250

1,126,312,533

1,623,640,268

-

-

425,009

28,948,403

47,529

-

Accrued Interest

Balance as per NFRS
5.11.3.2 Investment Securities
Investment in securities as per GAAP
Change in Fair Value as per NFRS
Difference
Balance as per NFRS

47,529

-

472,538

28,948,403

-

-

1,386,586

1,672,760

5.11.3.3 Deferred Tax Asset/liabilities
Deferred Asset/(Liabilities)Tax as per GAAP
Deferred Asset/(Liabilities)Tax as per NFRS
Increase in Fair Value
NBA provision reversal
Increase in loan due to booking of AIR

(13,975)

726,841

(284)

(726,841)

(590,748)

(731,192)

Provision for Gratuity

-

-

Provision for Leave Encashment

-

-

Adjustment for merger

-

-

Closing Deferred Asset/(Liabilities)Tax as per NFRS Equity

781,580

941,568

(673,055)

(712,500)

5,069,241

8,159,259

5.11.3.4 Other assets
Other Asset as per GAAP
Staff Loan amortization
Total Other Assets as per NFRS

149,875

1,513,056

5,219,116

9,672,314

31,824,025

49,450,662

5.11.3.5 Retained earnings
Opening retained earning as per GAAP
Defined Benefit Obligation
AIR of Loan
Provision reversal of Investment Property

-

-

1,378,411

1,706,114

663

1,695,962

Reversal of Provision on Investment

-

-

Leave Encashment Actuarial Gain/Loss

-

-

Deferred Tax

-

-

33,203,099

52,852,738

305,989

987,871

Total
5.11.3.6 Reserve
Opening Reserve as per GAAP
Fair Value Reserve

30,408,729

40,680,479

32,608

(1,695,961)

Actuary Gain

(1,264,472)

(674,628)

Total

29,176,865

38,309,890
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5.11.4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income
Particulars

Explanatory
Note

Interest income

"For the year ended 32.03.2075
(the latest period presented under previous GAAP)"

EN

Interest expense
Net interest income
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income
Net interest, fee and commission income
Net trading income
Other operating income
Total operating income
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses

Effect of Transition
to NFRSs

Previous GAAP

EN

Net operating income

Amount as per
NFRSs

238,045,144

833,913

238,879,057

(109,856,129)

-

(109,856,129)

128,189,016

833,913

129,022,929

20,075,338

-

20,075,338

(916,501)

-

(916,501)

19,158,838

-

19,158,838

147,347,853

833,913

148,181,766

-

-

-

455,645

-

455,645

147,803,499

833,913

148,637,412

(8,514,869)

2,421,856

(6,093,013)

139,288,630

3,255,769

142,544,399

(45,229,266)

(1,339,883)

(46,569,149)

(24,608,917)

-

(24,608,917)

Operating expense
Personnel expenses

EN

Other operating expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation

(7,801,022)

-

(7,801,022)

Operating Profit

61,649,425

1,915,886

63,565,311

Non operating income

-

-

-

Non operating expense

-

-

-

61,649,425

1,915,886

63,565,311

(18,720,321)

-

(18,720,321)

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

EN

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

EN

Total Comprehensive Income

286,173

(574,766)

(288,592)

43,215,277

1,341,120

44,556,398

-

(1,138,725)

(1,138,725)

43,215,277

202,396

43,417,673

* Explanatory note is requried for ech line item presented in adjustment on which ransition effect has been arisen.
5.11.5. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash flows

Particulars

Explanatory
Note*

"For the year ended 32.03.2075
(the latest period presented under previous GAAP)"
Previous
GAAP

Effect of
Transition to
NFRSs

Amount as per
NFRSs

Net cash flows from operating activities

(948,455,036)

778,168,120

(170,286,916)

Net cash flows from investing activities

1,076,096

(37,611,829)

(36,535,733)

Net cash flows from financing activities

1,077,874,081

(840,685,997)

237,188,085

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

130,495,141

(100,129,706)

30,365,435

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period

553,107,950

107,896,947

661,004,898

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period

683,603,092

7,767,241

691,370,333

1. The changes in net cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities is due to regrouping and
recalssification of items required under NFRS which is different from regulatory GAAPs financial statements.
2. The changes in cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period is due to regrouping and recalssification of items i.e statutory
balance with NRB, required under NFRS which is different from regulatory GAAPs financial statements.
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